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Group Philosophy

NISSIN FOODS Group is dedicated to exploring
possibilities of food and creating food of fabulous
tastes. We contribute to society and the earth by
bringing people the pleasure of eating.

We call ourselves an "EARTH FOOD CREATOR" because
we are not just a food manufacturer, but also aspire
to serve the world by creating food, the source of
life. "EARTH" also means land and soil, and grains,
which are the raw material of many foods, grow in
soil. The mission of NISSIN FOODS Group is to create
and continue to produce food with the bountiful
resources the Earth provides.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to present the
Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2021. This year we celebrate the fifth
anniversary of the Company’s listing in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BEATING HIGH BASE LAST YEAR

Under the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic, all the Group's
management, staff, and workers have been working together with
their outstanding efforts to achieve management goals and sharing
the belief of the Group’s founder, Mr. Momofuku Ando, that “Food-
related job is a sacred profession (IR &ZEEt])". The Group was able to
exceed a high base of 2020 financial performances. The Group’s profit
attributable to owners of the Company grew by approximately 0.6%
to HK$ 303.8 million, overcoming the high base of 2020, the increase
in the cost of raw materials mainly due to disruption of the global
supply chain, and an increase in brand investment in our signature
product, Cup Noodles. The Group’s revenue grew by approximately
10.0% year-on-year as the PRC operation performed well under the
expansion of sales geographical territory and increased sales channels in
Northern China and Western China, with double-digit growth in sales
volume for the flagship product, Cup Noodles. In addition, Hong Kong
operations contributed to overall growth in revenue by the increase in
sales in the non-noodles business from a diversified product portfolio,
including granola, vegetable and fruit juice from Kagome, and fresh-cut
vegetable.
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SUCCESSFUL ENDEAVOUR FOR REVAMPED £UP NOODLES

The Group has successfully launched a revamp to our signature brand
Cup Noodles. To celebrate the 50" anniversary of the birth of Cup
Noodles, the Group invested in our signature brand, Cup Noodles,
by upgrading the quality of noodles and soup so that our customers
can enjoy the product even more. Consumers have received the
revamp well, with an increase in the sales volume of Cup Noodle of
approximately 10.0% when compared with that of the previous year.
This investment will be a pivotal milestone for the Cup Noodles brand
with an aim to penetrate in the PRC when we look back to the present
in ten years' time.

INVESTMENT IN BUSINESS AND TALENTS

In terms of investment in business and operation, it was our great
honour to receive a maximum funding support of HK$15.0 million
from the Re-industrialisation Funding Scheme by the Innovation and
Technology Commission of Hong Kong government in November
2021, to be used for the installation of a new smart production line
in Hong Kong. We will implement a new automated production line
that will employ robotics, sensors and smart systems for the production
of instant noodle products, enabling real-time monitoring of the
production process. Moreover, a new packaging manufacturing plant
located at Zhuhai commenced operation to produce soft packaging
material for cup and bag-type instant noodles in December 2021. All
strategic investments will contribute to profit growth, enabling the
Group to reinforce the brand loyalty and enhance cost competitiveness
for sustainable development in the future.

In terms of investment in talents, the Group continued to invest in
talented employees by equipping them with new management know-
how, technical skill and knowledge. It is anticipated that the increase
in skill set in management, production, R&D and sale and marketing
of the talents will contribute to the Group’s sustainable growth in the
future.

SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to sustainability management as a responsible
company and citizen, under the belief of our founder, Mr Momofuku
Ando, that “Create food to serve society (TR &I &t ])". During the
year, the Group has implemented various initiatives to demonstrate
its commitment to sustainability management while coping with the
environment, contributing to society and community, and attending to
the well-being of our employees.

First, through the total product design concept, the Cup Noodles was
revamped with improved noodles and soup quality. The Company
has reduced the amount of paper and plastic used for manufacturing
containers and has efficiently loaded the cardboard packaged products
into trucks, which has resulted in a significant reduction in CO,
emissions equivalent to approximately 7,400 cedar trees per year.
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Second, following the installation of four solar photovoltaics on the
roofs of the manufacturing sites in Hong Kong in 2020, the Group
has installed solar photovoltaics on the rooftops of the manufacturing
sites located in Zhejiang and Fujian of the PRC to enhance the usage
of renewable energy in 2021. We continue to seek new sites to install
solar photovoltaics in order to save energy for the existing plants.

Third, in March 2021, the much-anticipated CUPNOODLES MUSEUM
Hong Kong (the “Museum”) was launched in Hong Kong. We continue
to nurture the next generation through educational and entertaining
encounters with food. The Company introduced the Museum under
the basic theme of “The Innovation Journey of Momofuku Ando”. The
Museum comprises three interactive workshops and many distinctive
exhibition corners. Visitors can personalise their own Cup Noodles,
Demae Iccho, and Nissin Granola and take them home.

OUTLOOK 2022

As the consumption upgrade trend remains in progress in the PRC,
there will be ample opportunities for our premium instant noodles
to expand our market share. In addition, the Group is committed to
delivering more value-added products to its consumers across the PRC,
raising our brand awareness, and increasing our geographical sales
coverages. In terms of brand development, not only does the Group
continue to sell more products under Cup Noodles brand, but it also
aims to increase the sales of bag-typed noodles such as Demae Iccho
brand in the PRC. In terms of the non-instant noodles business, the
Group will continue to expand them in Hong Kong and the PRC, create
synergy with the noodle business, and thereby enhance the financial
performance of this business segment.

In response to the increasing cost pressure from the unstable supply and
soaring prices of raw materials, which is one of our biggest challenges,
the Company has increased the ex-factory prices of our products in the
PRC and Hong Kong, with effective from 1 March 2022 and 1 April
2022, respectively. While we expect to alleviate the increasing cost
pressure from the unstable supply and soaring price of raw materials
and logistics by price revision, we will, at the same time, execute
cost-saving initiatives such as improving its production efficiency and
reducing expenses in order to achieve sustainable profit growth.

MISSION, RESOLUTION OF CHAIRMAN

In 2022, | am fully committed to delivering outstanding results and
ensuring a deep penetration of Cup Noodles in the PRC under the
collective effort of our management team, staff and workers.

| am determined to maximise business outcome while efficiently
developing the Group’s business operation and organisation aiming to
create long-term value for all stakeholders, including shareholders and
investors of the Company.

With such goals in mind, | believe in enriching our lives through the
production and distribution of tasty, healthy and quality food, and |
share the belief of our founder, Mr. Momofuku Ando, that “Create
food to serve society ([RAIA]").
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS F* Z iR ZE

FY2021 FY2020 +/-%
2021 A E (2020 FIEEFE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEBTT
Revenue WA 3,866.3 3,518.8 +9.9%
Gross Profit EF 1,227.3 1,158.7 +5.9%
31.7% 32.9%
Profit attributable to owners of NATHEB AEIEETF
the Company 303.8 301.9 +0.6%
7.9% 8.6%
Segment Results DEBELE 422.6 412.6 +2.4%
10.9% 11.7%
Adjusted EBITDA 4 3H%E EBITDA 604.1 570.0 +6.0%
15.6% 16.2%
Total Assets wEE 5,259.6 5,183.9 +1.5%
Net Assets attributable to owners of the R E A ABIREEFE
Company 3,950.6 3,895.7 +1.4%
Total Dividend per share (HK cents) GRS BEE (B 17.47 14.05 +24.3%
Including a special dividend per share BIEERERIRE GEAL)
(HK cents) 2.91 -
Earnings per share (HK cents) FRRAF GBI 28.74 28.11 +2.2%
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) B (%) 60.8% 50.0%
Net Asset per share (HK$) SREEFEGT) 3.74 3.63 +3.0%
TRACK RECORD 1¥ 45 5C 8%
Revenue in Mainland China Segment Results in Mainland China Proportion of Revenue
EE AR AN B At D FEEE by Geographical Region
HKSmillion B &7 7T HKSmillion B &/ 7T B E 25 2 WAL
2,500 300
250
2,000
200
1,500 FY BEEE 150 FY BB @ Mainland China s EIAi
1,000 +1 4-3“/0 100 +21 -n% 62-1 lJ/ll
500 @ 1H b¥F 50 @ H £¥F Hong Kong &5
0 +1 4-1 n/ﬂ 0 +1 -8%
2020 2021 2020 2021
Revenue in Hong Kong Segment Results in Hong Kong Proportion of Result
1L PN ERDMEE by Geographical Region
HKSmillion B &B7T HKSmillion B &B7T R EE| D 2 E&LL
1,500 200
1,200 150
900 FY MEER FY BMIBER @ Mainland China & it
100
600 +3I40/0 -25-40/0 70-80/0
300 @ 1H bk >0 [ RITEE:S Hong Kong &%
0 -3.7% o -46.37%
2020 2021 2020 2021
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The Board is pleased to announce the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Analysis of Macro and Business Conditions in 2021 and
early 2022

The challenges brought about by Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19" or the "pandemic”) have affected not only our lives,
but also our economy and society. Since the beginning of 2021, many
have adopted work from home practice, minimised social activities
and changed their shopping behaviour in response to COVID-19. The
long-awaited vaccination program was launched in Hong Kong in
February 2021 as a tool to protect its residents from severe illness and
death arising from COVID-19. As the vaccination rate climbs steadily
over time, we witnessed a more stable pandemic situation and an
increasing vaccination rate in mid-2021, the government relaxed certain
social distancing restrictions and introduced the “vaccine bubble”.
People returned to the offices, and the economy gradually recovered
with consumption returned. However, as border closures and travel
restrictions continue, the local economy, tourism and certain retail and
catering businesses continue to be negatively impacted. The overall
consumption level has not yet recovered to the pre-COVID-19 level.

In late November 2021, a worrying situation developed regarding
COVID-19. A more contagious, but less virulent, Omicron COVID-19
variant has emerged and has started to spread worldwide. In Hong
Kong, as well as the PRC, we saw an increased number of infections
with mutated variants. As Hong Kong was hit by the fifth wave in
January 2022, the government re-introduced a series of stringent
anti-epidemic measures, including flight suspension, compulsory
quarantine, a ban on dine-in services at restaurants after 6 pm and
stringent social distancing measures to curb further outbreak, with
the aim of “dynamic zero”. This undoubtedly creates a source of
uncertainties to gauge economic recovery in the future.

The unprecedented pandemic has negatively impacted the supply chains
of raw materials and natural resources. In the instant noodles industry,
procurement and logistics costs of a wide range of items such as palm
oil, wheat flour and crude oil, were adversely affected. In particular,
palm oil prices soared to a historic high, mainly due to labour shortages
and supply shortages in palm oil-producing countries. Furthermore,
speculative money had entered not only into the financial markets,
but also into the commodity markets; and the market prices of various
commodities increased sharply, which in turn affected various retail
prices worldwide. Governments in some developed countries adopted
fiscal policy to stimulate their pandemic-hit economies, while at the
same time dealing with rising prices. Their central banks implemented
easing monetary policy to stimulate the economies and maintain the
financial markets, while steep inflation needs to be tackled urgently in
parallel.
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In spite of this challenging environment, in 2021, the Company
enhanced the signature product, Cup Noodles in our product range
in line with reinforcement of brand investment. In addition, we have
focused on expanding our sales geographical territories in the PRC in
order to reach new consumers. In line with the Company’s strategic
direction, we continue to improve the quality of our products to make
them more enjoyable to our consumers. We believe that by regularly
enhancing the consumer experience, we can attract new consumers
and enhance brand loyalty among existing consumers. Furthermore,
we believe that improving the quality of our products will help us, as
a socially responsible corporation, to safeguard the wellbeing of our
consumers and help the Company progress in the right direction.

FINANCIALS

For the year under review, the PRC operations continuously performed
very well under the strategic direction of geographical sales expansion.
The sales volume for our signature products achieved a highly positive
growth year-on-year and there were uninterrupted brand investments.
On the other hand, the Hong Kong operations not only focused on the
instant noodles business but also diversified its product portfolio into
the non-noodles category. Consolidated revenue increased by 9.9% to
HK$3,866.3 million (2021: HK$3,518.8 million), primarily attributable
to continuous revenue growth from an increase in sale volume of cup-
type instant noodles in the PRC operations and an increase in revenue
from the diversified portfolio in the Hong Kong operations. Gross profit
increased by 5.9% to HK$1,227.3 million (2020: HK$1,158.7 million),
representing a gross profit margin of 31.7% for the year 2021 (2020:
32.9%). The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to
the substantial price spike of key raw materials year-on-year.

At Adjusted EBITDA level ™ the Group increased by 6.0% to
HK$604.1 million (2020: HK$570.0 million), representing the Adjusted
EBITDA margin of 15.6% for the year (2020: 16.2%). Profit attributable
to owners of the Company increased by 0.6% to HK$303.8 million
(2020: HK$301.9 million), representing the net profit margin of 7.9%
for the year (2020: 8.6%). Profitability declined during the year as
a result of the surge in raw material costs, although the Company
continued to invest in our brands. The Group's basic earnings per share
increased to 28.74 HK cents for the year (2020: 28.11 HK cents) due
to a decrease in the weighted average number of shares outstanding
attributable to the shares buyback during the year.

Note:  Adjusted EBITDA is a non-HKFRS measurement used by the management
to assess performance of operating segments, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The measurement basis of Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as net profit before net interest expenses, tax, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use asset and
amortisation of trademark. This also excludes share of material gains or
losses which are of capital nature of non-operational related and fair
value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Final Dividend and Special Dividend

Thanks to the continuous support of our shareholders, we are
celebrating the 5th anniversary of the Company’s listing in Hong
Kong since our initial public offering in December 2017 and the 50th
anniversary of the birth of Cup Noodles. Taking into account that
the Company has maintained relatively good operating momentum
in recent years and solid balance sheet, in order to share the joy of
both anniversaries with our shareholders, the Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of 14.56 HK cents per share and a special
dividend of 2.91 HK cents per share, totalling 17.47 HK cents per share
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company as at 20 June 2022, representing an increase of 3.42
HK cents per share over last year's dividend (2020: final dividend per
share of 14.05 HK cents and no special dividend). The total dividend is
expected to amount to approximately HK$182.3 million. The payout
ratio will be 60.8% for the year (2020: 50.0%).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Hong Kong Operations

In Hong Kong, in the second half of 2021, we saw a series of weeks
with no local COVID-19 cases from October to mid-December, and a
rising vaccination rates. As a result, our lifestyles had briefly resumed
to normal with the easing of certain social distancing measures. Also,
panic buying frenzy and hoarding of basic necessities subsided during
the year. However, with travel restrictions and Hong Kong's borders to
the PRC and overseas not being completely open, overall consumption
levels had yet to return to the pre-COVID-19 levels.

Under the pandemic, we also observed consumers having a heightened
attention to health, which was one of reasons that consumers in Hong
Kong sought higher quality food items from trustworthy brands. In the
circumstances, the Company has been able to expand the non-instant
noodles category businesses.
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Revenue from the Hong Kong operations increased by 3.4% to
HK$1,466.2 million (2020: HK$1,418.4 million) thanks to an increase in
revenue in the non-instant noodle business from frozen food, vegetable
and fruit juices, fresh-cut vegetables, confectionery and distribution
business in the absence of the sudden surge in demand especially in the
bag-type instant noodles under the pandemic in early 2020. Currently,
revenue from the Hong Kong operations accounted for 37.9% (2020:
40.3%) of the Group's revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Hong Kong operations substantially
decreased by 25.4% to HK$123.5 million (2020: HK$165.5 million),
mainly attributable to the surge in raw materials prices and the
expenses related to our brand investments.

Instant Noodles Business

For the year under review, as the lifestyles in Hong Kong had returned
to normal for a certain period of time, the performance for the cup-
type instant noodles almost returned to the level of year 2020 with solid
growth in its sales volume towards the end of 2021.

Celebrating the 50th anniversary of Cup Noodles in 2021, the Company
introduced a revamp to the Cup Noodles brand with smoother noodles
and improved soup quality, bringing excellent dining experiences for
our beloved customers. Following the launch of the famous Hokkaido
shrimp ramen with the “Fresh Shrimp Salt Flavour”, the Company
added a new dimension to the Cup Noodles brand by combining
the popular pork bone soup flavour with the popular shrimp ramen
soup base to create a new “Fresh Shrimp Pork Bone Soup Flavour”.
Also, the Company kept up efforts to offer high-quality noodles under
the Demae Iccho brand with Hokkaido’s wheat flour renowned for
its fine texture and fresh wheat flavour, which was highly praised by
consumers. Also, to further complement the instant noodles portfolio,
the Company launched additional offerings under the Doll brand to
allow our consumers to enjoy a series of novel and innovative products.
For instance, we launched the Sichuan Style Spicy Chicken Flavour Soup
Noodle under the Doll brand in November 2021.
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Non Noodles Business

There was a steady increase in the sales volume of packed fresh-cut
vegetables as the number of supermarkets selling them was increasing
and they were becoming more popular among health-conscious
consumers who favour fresh vegetables. Also, the sales in granola were
also increasing, not only in Hong Kong and mainland China, but also in
Singapore and Thailand. Kagome's vegetable juice business was steadily
expanding with increasing sales volume. For the distribution business
of MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited (“MCMS"), the decline
in sales to airport, hotels and catering businesses due to the impact of
COVID-19 was largely offset by the increase in sales of seasonings and
other products to retailers.

The PRC Operations

The PRC's economy posted robust growth in 2021, boosted by the
entrenched recovery after the containment of COVID-19 as domestic
demand continued to gain traction. Real consumption growth
gradually improved to the pre-COVID-19 level with enhanced consumer
confidence. As reported by the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC,
the retail sales delivered 12.5% growth year-on-year, demonstrating a
solid recovery from the pandemic.

For the year under review, the Company repeatedly recorded a positive
revenue growth year-on-year, beating a higher comparable base
in 2020, running a proven business model, and demonstrating our
commitment to the PRC operations. Revenue increased by 14.3%
(in local currency: 6.6%) to HK$2,400.2 million (2020: HK$2,100.4
million), thanks to the growth in the sales volume from the cup-type
instant noodles as customers continuously preferred new tastes and
better quality products. The joint venture distribution business also
inorganically contributed to the revenue on a full-year basis. Currently,
revenue from the PRC operations accounted for 62.1% (2020: 59.7%)
of the Group's revenue.

Segment results in the PRC operations significantly increased by 21.0%
to HK$299.1 million (2020: HK$247.1 million), mainly attributable to
the increase in the sales volume of cup-type instant noodles, but offset
by the surge in raw material costs.

Sales volumes of the PRC's flagship Cup Noodles brand grew at a
double-digit growth rate. Same as in the Hong Kong operations, the
product revamp has also been rolled out in the PRC since May 2021
to celebrate the 50th anniversary of Cup Noodles, to upgrade the
quality of noodles and soup. In relation to the Cup Noodles Big brand,
as the spicy pork bone (tonkotsu) soup flavour launched in 2020
was well-received, we launched a spicy shrimp soup flavour in the
PRC in September 2021. The Company continuously executed brand
investment in its unique instant noodles in the PRC so as to enhance
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the brand loyalty. Along this direction, the bowl-type Nissin U.F.O. Stir
Noodles was redesigned with an improved lid for draining hot water
for convenience and safety while its sauce was reinvented with a richer
taste, which not only delivers a more satisfying consumption experience
but also makes an even more value-added product.

In the PRC, sales promotions included a crossover with a famous
Japanese animation. The Company introduced new packaged products
featuring its animation characters. The Company also launched
different crossover promotional campaigns with the same characters. To
promote and increase the sales of the renewed products, the Company
advertised renewed Cup Noodles on high-speed trains, taking over
the walls and doors of the luggage cabinets with Cup Noodles and
animation characters.

The distribution business in Shanghai launched in April 2020 engaging
in the distribution of Japanese third parties brand confectionery and
beverages strived to expand sales volume of Kagome vegetable and
fruit juice and our brand of granola through its sales network. The
results were in line with the Company’s expectations.

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company Limited

Regarding the new packaging materials manufacturing plant located
in Zhuhai as announced in July 2019, the plant construction was
completed in September 2021 and full-scale production commenced
in December 2021 after the trial operation. It primarily produces soft
packaging materials, including packaging films for bag-type instant
noodles, cup-type instant noodles, liquids, and powders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As announced on 23 December 2021, the Company and Mitsubishi
Corporation (“Mitsubishi”) entered into a share sales and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase, and
Mitsubishi agreed to sell, 300 ordinary shares of MCMS, representing
30.0% of the total issued shares of MCMS for the consideration of
approximately HK$13.7 million (the “Acquisition”). The completion of
the Acquisition took place on 5 January 2022.
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With effective from the completion date, the Company holds 81.0%
interest in MCMS and MCMS remains as a non-wholly own subsidiary
of the Company.

During the period from 6 January to 20 January 2022, the Company
bought back a total of 4,099,000 shares of the Company at price
ranging from HK$6.17 to HK$6.50 per share, with an approximate
aggregated consideration of HK$25.99 million on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). All shares were
cancelled on 23 February 2022. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of issued shares is 1,043,691,480 shares.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$5,259.6 million (31 December 2020: HK$5,183.9 million)
and the total equity was HK$4,116.3 million (31 December 2020:
HK$4,043.2 million). The Group’s working capital was HK$2,048.5
million (31 December 2020: HK$2,231.3 million), represented by the
difference between the total current assets of HK$3,108.9 million (31
December 2020: HK$3,296.6 million) and the total current liabilities
of HK$1,060.4 million (31 December 2020: HK$1,065.3 million). The
current ratio was 2.9 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: 3.1).

The financial position of the Group remained healthy with net cash of
approximately HK$1,894.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$2,115.0
million) and HK$180.8 million (31 December 2020: HK$180.8 million)
in available banking facilities as at 31 December 2021. The Group had
no external borrowing and the gearing ratio was nil as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
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Capital Expenditure

The Group'’s capital expenditure was HK$315.9 million during the year
under review (2020: HK$259.7 million), which was mainly due to the
investments on the production plants, machinery and equipment in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Capital Commitment

The Group had capital commitment in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not provided of
HK$66.6 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: HK$20.7
million).

Financial Risk Management

The Group had not entered into nor traded in derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or speculative purposes. The Company
and its several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As HK
Dollar is currently pegged to US Dollar, the Company considered that
the Group’s exposure to fluctuation in HK Dollar against US Dollar is
limited. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Japanese Yen
and Renminbi against HK Dollar.

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liability
(31 December 2020: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

The Group did not have pledged assets as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: Nil).
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Use of Proceeds from Global Offering

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 11 December 2017 (the “Listing”). The total
proceeds from the Global Offering involving the issue of 268,580,000
ordinary shares of the Company amounted to approximately HK$950.8
million. As at 31 December 2021, the Group held the unutilised net
proceeds as deposit with licensed institutions in Hong Kong.

According to the proposed applications of the proceeds set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus,
the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Listing to 31 December
2021 was shown on the below table:

Planned use of

Usage disclosed in the Prospectus RERERKENAE the net proceeds

FriesaRe
WitEIRE
HK$ million
58T
Further expanding and upgrading ~ BREAREERE &
production plants and facilities &% 45.0% 409.8
Further expanding sales and BAHE R 8%
distribution network 10.0% 911
Enhancing research and RHHEEN
development capabilities 5.0% 455
Partnerships and/or acquisitions BUBHAER it
e RIA 30.0% 273.2
Working capital REEBEREN 10.0% 91.1
Net Proceeds FREHEEH 910.8

*Note: The company expects to utilize remaining balance in the coming
years, subject to the identification of suitable mergers and acquisitions
opportunities.
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Proceeds utilised

Unutilised during the
proceeds  financial year Utilised net  Unutilised net
as at ended proceedsupto proceeds up to
1January  31December  31December 31 December
2021 2021 2021 2021
#2021 & WE BEE  BEaE
1A18 12A31R8LE 12A31H 12A31R
*ER  HREEHRD BRAK AERM
WAENE ERANMETE  FENEFE  FERERE
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HKS million
AEET BEET BEET BEET
0.0 0.0 409.8 0.0
0.0 0.0 91.1 0.0
00 0.0 455 0.0
174.6 493 148.0 125.3*
0.0 0.0 911 0.0
174.6 49.3 785.5 1253
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, unless and until the pandemic is contained and daily
life resumes normal, the raw material price fluctuation will continue to
impact the manufacturing businesses for the time being.

In the PRC, the Company has taken various measures to improve
production efficiency and reduce a wide range of costs in order to
alleviate these price pressures. However, these measures are insufficient
to absorb the constantly rising cost of raw materials. In this challenging
economic environment, the PRC operations implemented a mid-single-
digit percentage increase on average for the ex-factory prices of cup-
type and bag-type instant noodles in the PRC, with effective from 1
March 2022. This is the first price adjustment in the PRC over the past
11 years. The Company will continue to focus on expanding our sales
geographical territories and investing in our brands. Consumption
is expected to continue to grow in China, with per capita spending
increasing. We are confident in our track record of growing sales
of value-added products and will continue to expand our business
area, particularly in Northern China and Western China, where we
will be able to increase our in-store sales. In December 2021, we
started production in our packaging materials factory in Zhuhai. As its
production for soft packaging material has been ramping up in line
with its original plan, we foresee a positive impact on our packaging
material cost from in-house procurement from the beginning of the
first operating year, offsetting depreciation cost from the new plant and
equipment.

In Hong Kong, market prices for palm oil and wheat flour have
substantially soared, leading to a huge increase in procurement
costs. The Company also have implemented a number of cost-saving
measures. However, they cannot completely offset the higher raw
material costs. Therefore, effective from 1 April 2022, the Hong Kong
operations will also increase the ex-factory prices of certain bag-
type and container-type instant noodles by a mid-to-high-single-
digit percentage. The Company would also strive to enhance product
quality alongside the price adjustment. The launch of new round of
Consumption Voucher Scheme starting from April 2022 is expected to
help stimulate local consumption in the near-term, especially on small-
value items such as groceries. In addition, to ensure sustainable growth,
the Hong Kong operations will focus on increasing sales from our non-
instant noodle business. In particular, it will further strengthen the
frozen food, distribution business, confectionery business, vegetable
business and beverage business to enhance the synergy with the non-
instant noodle business in the PRC and also to increase the profit
margin. Furthermore, we were awarded a maximum funding support of
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HK$15.0 million from the Re-Industrialisation Funding Scheme launched
by the Innovation and Technology Commission of the Hong Kong
government in November 2021, to be used for the installation of a
new smart production line in Hong Kong. The Company will implement
factory digital transformation, including employing robotics, sensors
and smart systems for the production of instant noodle products,
enabling real-time monitoring of the production process and re-
strengthening our cost competitiveness. Scheduled for completion by
July 2023, the new line will improve production and space efficiency, as
well as production flexibility, which is in line with Nissin Foods’ business
development strategy.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 14 April 2021, the Group acquired 100% interest in Ming
Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$48,900,000. Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited holds a
portfolio of plants and machineries and a right-of-use of the land and
leasehold property which are all located in Hong Kong. The acquisition
of such equity did not constitute notifiable transaction of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year under review, except for the aforesaid acquisition, there
were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures by the Group and the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of staff of the Group was
approximately 3,590 (31 December 2020: 3,500) with staff costs
(excluding directors’ remuneration) amounting to HK$696.0 million
for the year. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
the individual performance, qualification and experience of employees
concerned and prevailing industry practice. The Group provides
mandatory provident fund entitlement to its employees in Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka

Mr. Munehiko Ono (resigned on 1 July 2021)
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (appointed on 1 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (appointed on 1 July 2021)
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman) (appointed on 1 July 2021)

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman) (appointed on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman)

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (appointed on 1 July 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

CFN Lawyers in association with Broad & Bright
Broad & Bright Law Firm
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Akifumi Aiba (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Gu Chunlei (@ppointed on 1 June 2021)
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi
Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga
Mr. Yutaka Komori
Mr. Gen Matsunobu
Mr. Takeshi Shigemi
Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy
Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche
Mr. Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Ying Lifeng (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Zhao Xiongda
(The order is alphabetized by the last names
of the senior management members.)

REGISTERED OFFICE

21-23 Dai Shing Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11-13 Dai Shun Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION

Website: www.nissingroup.com.hk
Investor Relations Email: ir@nissinfoods.com.hk
Media Relations Email: pr@nissinfoods.com.hk
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Mr. Shinji Tatsutani
RABER%E
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka HITES 3k HEMNKE
JIBRFE £ 4
Executive Director

WITES
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Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
BERELE
Executive Director

WITES

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
ZHEREE

Executive Director,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
HITES EBER K
BEWITE



Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada
IR EE
Executive Director

WITES

In a small shed built in the backyard of his home, Mr. Momofuku Ando, the founder
of Nissin Foods, spent an entire year developing a ramen that can be quickly made at
home by just adding hot water. Chicken Ramen, the product of many trial and error
experiments was finally invented and launched to the market in 1958. Mr. Ando set
forth five key principles in developing Chicken Ramen, namely: 1) delicious, 2) easy
to store, 3) easy to cook, 4) reasonably priced, and 5) safe and hygienic. These very
qualities have enabled instant noodles to continue winning the hearts of people around
the world, and still hold true for Nissin Foods in developing instant noodles for today.
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Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, aged 42, is Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for strategic
planning and managing the overall business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Ando joined the Group in March 2009 and has been
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ando
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University in
Japan in March 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ando worked in
Mitsubishi Corporation from April 2004 to December 2007. In January
2008, Mr. Ando joined Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Japan”)
and its subsidiaries (“Nissin Japan Group”) as the deputy general
manager of marketing division and is currently a managing officer and
chief representative, East Asia of Nissin Japan, and a director of seven
subsidiaries of Nissin Japan (both are non-executive in nature).

In May 2021, Mr. Ando was appointed as a guest member of the
standing committee of Tier | Association and vice president of Tier
Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute of
Foods Science and Technology. In September 2021, Mr. Ando was
appointed as the chairman of the advisory committee, Nissin Foods
(Hong Kong) Charity Fund. Currently, he is a non-official member of
the Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food under the
Food and Health Bureau, the HKSAR Government; a director of School
Management Committee, Hong Kong Japanese School and Japanese
International School, Hong Kong; and a member of the advisory board
of the Research Centre for Comparative Japanese Studies, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa, aged 62, is Executive Director. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing and managing overall research and development
functions of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fujinawa
joined Nissin Japan in 1982 with his last position being the executive
officer and deputy head of NISSIN Global Innovation Center of Nissin
Japan. Between April 2008 and March 2014, Mr. Fujinawa served as
deputy managing director of research and development division of
the Company. Mr. Fujinawa has extensive experience in the fields of
research and development related to food products. He obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Obihiro University of Agriculture
and Veterinary Medicine in Japan in March 1982. In May 2021, Mr.
Fujinawa was appointed as a member of the standing committee of
Tier Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute of
Foods Science and Technology.
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Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, aged 57, is Executive Director, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall finance functions of the Group. Mr. Tatsutani
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Osaka Prefecture
University in Japan in March 1987. Mr. Tatsutani has over 30 years of
experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Tatsutani joined Nissin Japan
in April 1987 and worked in accounting division until November 1996.
From November 1996 to March 2002, Mr. Tatsutani was assigned
to Guangdong Shunde Nissin Food Co., Ltd.. From March 2002 to
March 2008, Mr. Tatsutani was re-assigned to Nissin Japan with his
last position being manager in finance division. In March 2008, after
re-joining the Group, Mr. Tatsutani has been a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and is also a director of Nissin Shanghai
Food Safety Institute.

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka, aged 57, is Executive Director. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible for overseeing
and managing operations of sales of “NISSIN (H;&)" brand products in
the PRC. Before joining the Group, Mr. Kawasaka joined Nissin Japan
in 1988 with his last position being the assistant general manager in
the marketing department of Nissin Japan. Between 2007 and 2015,
Mr. Kawasaka has been a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
for overseeing the sales and marketing functions in the PRC. Mr.
Kawasaka has extensive experience in the fields of sales, marketing
and management. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1988.

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada, aged 64, is Executive Director, and Chief
Production Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall production functions of the Group. He is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yamada obtained a Bachelor
of Agriculture degree from Kobe University in Japan in March 1981.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Yamada was the Chief Production Officer
of Nissin Japan, and oversaw its chilled and frozen foods, confectionery
and beverages businesses. Mr. Yamada joined Nissin Japan in 1981 and
has served in various positions in Nissin Japan.

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, aged 74, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017. Dr.
Matsumoto obtained a Bachelor degree of Medicine from the School
of Medicine of Keio University in Japan in March 1973 and further
obtained a Doctor of Medicine degree from the same University in
October 1981. From 1973 to 1984, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Keio
University with his last position being teaching assistant of the School
of Medicine. From 1980 to 1982, Dr. Matsumoto was employed by
National Hospital Organization Kanagawa Hospital as surgeon. From
1982 to 2005, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Fujita Health University with
his last position being the President of the Banbuntane Hotokukai
Hospital of Fujita Health University. After his departure from Fujita
Health University, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Tokyo Medical Center of
the National Hospital Organization between 2005 and 2014, with his
last position being the President.
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Dr. Matsumoto is currently a member of the Promotion of New Strategy
Expert Committee, a member of the Next-generation Information and
Communication Technology Council and an advisor of Ministry of
Health, Labor and Welfare.

Mr. Masaru Takahashi, aged 69, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 July 2021. Mr. Takahashi
is currently a special advisor of CENXUS GROUP, a tax accounting
corporation in Japan since January 2018 and a non-executive director
of Fukui Computer Holdings Inc., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9790) since June 2018. Mr. Takahashi also
served as a lecturer of the Graduate School of Professional Accountancy
of Meiji University since April 2020.

From October 1980 to December 2017, Mr. Takahashi worked in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Japan with his last position being a
partner and served as a specially-appointed professor in international
accounting in the Graduate School of Asia University in Japan from April
2014 to March 2020. Mr. Takahashi obtained a Bachelor of Law degree
from Gakushu-in University in Japan in March 1976. He qualified as a
Certified Public Accountant in Japan in 1984.

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano, aged 57, is Independent Non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017.
Professor Nakano obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton
College in 1987, a Master of Philosophy degree from Yale University in
the United States in 1990 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in 1998
from the same University. Since August 1995, Professor Nakano has
been working in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is currently
the chairman and a professor at the department of Japanese studies.

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai, aged 47, is Independent Non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 1 April 2020. He is currently an
associate professor of Physical Education of Keio University Institute in
Japan, a director of Japan Tennis Association and a deputy director of
Keio University Athletic Association in Japan. Mr. Sakai has extensive
experience in the sport coaching and management, specializing in
tennis. Mr. Sakai is a director of Kabushikikaisha Egg Ball (fk=X&# T
Y778 —)L), a limited liability company incorporated in Japan, which
is principally engaged in tennis coaching business. Mr. Sakai obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in political science from the Faculty of Law of Keio
University in Japan in March 1997, a Master’s degree in sports science
from Waseda University in Japan in March 2007 and a Doctoral’s
degree from Keio University Graduate School of Media and Governance
from Keio University in Japan in February 2014.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Chunlei, aged 45, joined the group in February 2014 and is
currently the acting general manager of Nissin Foods (China) Holdings
Company Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall
sales of the group in southern China. Mr. Gu graduated from Jiangxi
Open University in 1998, majoring in Finance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Gu worked in Dingyi Food Co., Ltd. and Jinmailang Foods
Co., Ltd.. He has extensive experience in food sales and marketing.

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, aged 48, is the chairman and managing director
of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited and a director
of Winner Food Products Limited, responsible for overseeing and
managing overall business and operational matters. Mr. Hiroi obtained
a Bachelor of Arts in International Relations from Ritsumeikan University
in Japan in March 1996. Mr. Hiroi joined Nissin Japan in April 1996 and
worked in various roles in marketing and sales function until March
2013. He joined the Group in March 2013 and was assigned as a
director of the Company until May 2015. From May 2015 to September
2019, he was the deputy managing director of Nissin Foods (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.. He rejoined the Group in September 2019.

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga, aged 49, joined the Group in March 2014 and
is currently deputy managing director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company
Limited and managing director of Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,
Limited, responsible for overseeing the sales functions in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kikunaga is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the company.
He joined Nissin Japan in April 1997 and performed various sales and
marketing positions in Nissin Japan until March 2014. Mr. Kikunaga
obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree from Aoyama Gakuin
University in Japan in March 1997.

Mr. Yutaka Komori, aged 58, joined the Group in October 2019 and
is the chairman of Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd. and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Komori was appointed as senior
executive officer for sales in northern China of the Group from March
2020 to March 2021, responsible for overseeing and managing overall
sales in northern China region. Before this, Mr. Komori was the deputy
head of northern China Business. Mr. Komori obtained a Bachelor
of Law degree from Waseda University in Japan in March 1986. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Komori worked in Mitsubishi Corporation
from April 1986 to September 2019, with his last position being the
general manager of overseas marketing group of Mitsubishi Shokuhin,
a subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation.
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Mr. Gen Matsunobu, aged 51, joined the Group in March 2010 and is
currently general manager of marketing for mainland China, responsible
for overseeing and managing product planning and marketing of the
Group. Mr. Matsunobu graduated from the Department of Biochemical
Science and Technology, Faculty of Agriculture, Kagoshima University
in Japan in March 1994 and further obtained a Master of Agriculture
degree from the same University in March 1996. From April 1996 to
March 2010, Mr. Matsunobu worked in Nissin Japan, with his last
position being a supervisor in the marketing division.

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, aged 59, joined the Group in March 2014 and is
currently director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Co., Ltd, in charge
of administration, public relations and business planning functions.
In March 2014 he was first appointed as senior executive officer for
sales in southern China of the Group, responsible for overseeing and
managing overall sales in southern China of the Group. From April
2017 to March 2018, Mr. Shigemi was responsible for overseeing
and managing overall sales in eastern China of the Group and his title
was changed to senior executive officer for sales in eastern China. He
graduated from the Chinese language curriculum of Kyoto Sangyo
University in Japan in March 1985. He has nearly 26 years of experience
in sales and marketing. From April 1985 to August 2013, Mr. Shigemi
worked in Panasonic Corporation (previously known as Matsushita
Electric Industrial Co., Ltd), with his last position being head of the
marketing division. From August 2013 to March 2014, Mr. Shigemi was
the manager of the marketing division of Nissin Japan.

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy, aged 56, joined the Group since
September 2003. She is currently the general manager of quality
management department, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall quality management matters of the Group. Ms. Tang obtained
Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Quality Management degree
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 and 1998 respectively.
Ms. Tang was responsible for lab testing and quality management work
of edible oil factory and refinery under Hop Hing Group during 1988-
2003 before she joined the Group.

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy, aged 61, joined the Group in January 2008
and is currently the general manager of human resources department
(China and Hong Kong). Before this, Mr. Tse was a senior executive
officer for sales in Nissin Foods HK, responsible for overseeing and
managing the sales functions of Nissin Foods HK. Mr. Tse obtained
an Honours Diploma in Business Management from the Hong Kong
Baptist University (previously known as Hong Kong Baptist College)
in November 1985 and obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Open University of Hong Kong in June 2002. Mr.
Tse has accumulated 34 years of experience in sales and marketing of
consumable products having previously worked under sales department
in various companies.
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Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche, aged 50, joined the Group in May
2018. She is currently the general manager of public relations
department, responsible for overseeing corporate affairs, media
relations, customer care centre, community relations, and internal
communication of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Social
Sciences in Communication (Journalism) degree from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 1994 and a Master of International and Public
Affairs degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2005. She started
her career as a court reporter and then spent five years in the marketing
of U.S. produce in mainland China and Hong Kong. She began serving
as an in-house public relations professional in 2004, and brings with
her a wealth of experience from industries across home appliances,
payments, banking and NGO.

Mr. Xi Xiaotong, aged 54, joined the Group since December 2013
and is currently the general manager in southern China, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in southern China. Mr. Xi
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Nihon University in
Japan in March 1996. Before joining the Group, Mr. Xi had worked
in Nissin Japan since April 1996, and had been assigned to Shanghai
Nissin between 2001 and 2004 and between 2008 and 2009.

Mr. Zhao Xiongda, aged 52, joined the Group in February 2001.
He is currently the general manager for sales in western China of the
Group, responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales. Mr. Zhao
obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in enterprise management
from Shanghai University of Engineering Science in July 1991. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Pepsi Cola, US Campbell’s and
other food manufacturing companies. He has extensive experience in
food sales and marketing.

FEF L+ 505 R2018F5ANMALREE -
RAQNEBERTRCE  aEEBHAKER -
EHER BERBFL HEBEERANZD
Me TLETHI9MAFREETB R REEFES
(FE) LR BE LB - N2005FREEE
REFBERALEHEE LTSN - EBEAERT
BErELERASR  AERPREAMAEEREE
Bl EEMMEHE TIESF o T TM2004F A
BACERAH  UWHEBETRTENEELR &
B RE - T FE - RITFIEBRATHERE -

R LAE - 545% 0 B2013F 12 ALURMERAS
CRAERAKEEEEBENEEASENE
FMMEBEBHE SRR - ZAER1996F3AL AR
BARKSESEESS LB - JIARERZ
AT ZAAEB1996F4 AR BEEBE A
WHA2001F E20044F % 20084F =2009F K £
ARG o

HEIEESEAE 5258 - B2001F2 AMAAREHE -
BIRFRAAEEERPELLE  GREEENRE
BASEREAMEBHEESES o MEEN1991
F7TRAELBIRBMASZNELXEEIRE
T2 - RINAKREER - MAEEFBRRBER
& . ZECampbell's kR MR REERT o R
RmiHEREHETERELEELER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | —ZE=—F &R

3



34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [P E)G

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (version up to 31 December 2021) (the “CG
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange. The Board is of the opinion that during the year, the
Company had complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code except for the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is currently the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business and
operations. Mr. Ando has been responsible for overall management
of the Group since 2009. The Board believes that the current structure
enables the Company to make and implement business decision swiftly
and effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers that the
balance of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the independent
non-executive directors. Further, the Audit Committee, which consists
exclusively of independent non-executive directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary.

In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

From 1 January 2022, certain amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) came into effect and the
requirements under the New CG Code will apply to all listed issuers for
financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The Board will
continue to review and enhance the corporate governance practice of
the Company to ensure compliance with the New CG Code and align
with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.
To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company (the
“Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model Code, each
Director is required to notify the Chairman of the Board in writing and
obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or designated
director prior to any dealings in the Securities. Relevant employees
of the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in the Securities at any time when they possess inside
information.
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THE BOARD

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka

Mr. Munehiko Ono (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (appointed on 1 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (appointed on 1 July 2021)
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions. The Chairman is responsible for formulating
business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman ensures that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board Meetings
and receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman
also encourages each of the Directors to participate actively in and to
make a full contribution to the Board’s affairs so that the Board acts in
the best interest of the Company.

During the year, the Board at all times has met the requirement of
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed their independence based on the guidelines
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considered them to be independent.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors come from diverse business,
varied background and experience. Through the participation in the
Board Meetings and various Committee Meetings, the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment, extensive
experience and valuable contribution to the Board. The Board believes
that the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interests of the shareholders and the Group as
a whole.

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions, internal control,
risk management and performances. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management including: (1)
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements
for the Board’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company's expenses.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with
various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction of
the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board
believes that the current Board composition satisfies with the corporate
governance requirements with regard to the balance of expertise, skills
and experience as well as the ongoing development and management
of its business activities.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notice prior to
the date of regular Board Meeting is given to the Directors and the
agenda together with Board papers are normally sent to them at least
three days before the intended date of a Board Meeting. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment
before being tabled at the next Board Meeting for approval. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any
Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times a
year. The Board convened six meetings during the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Directors do not have any
material financial, business, family or other relationships among
members of the Board. Should a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter being considered at the Board Meeting, he or she
will abstain from voting and the Independent Non-executive Directors
will be present on dealing with such conflict of interest issues.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which specifies the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that the Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its business
strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and will
disclose in the corporate governance report about the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy on annual basis.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the members of the directors and senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

k5

EEEREHREEEMNE
HE2021F 12831 BILFE  EENahE
BABZBEESHEEINNT

Number of Personnel

Emoluments < A
Nil to HK$2,000,000 ZZ 2,000,000 &L 19
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /&7TZ 3,000,000 7T 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 &JTE 4,000,000 7T 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 /&7TE 8,000,000 /& 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. The term of the service contract of each of Mr.
Kiyotaka Ando and Mr. Shinji Tatsutani is from 11 December 2020 to
30 June 2023; whereas the term of service agreement of each of Mr.
Toshimichi Fujinawa, Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka and Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada is
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Each of Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano has
respectively entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for the period from 11 December 2020 to 30 June 2023. Mr. Toshiaki
Sakai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023. Whereas Mr. Masaru
Takahashi has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for the period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Their service agreements and letters of appointment are subject to
the termination in accordance with the respective terms and may be
renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”) and applicable Listing Rules. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, all directors are required to retire from office
by rotation at annual general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by the
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By
virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the directors may
appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either to fill a
vacancy or as an additional director, provided that the appointment
does not cause the number of directors to exceed any number fixed
as the maximum number of directors. A director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then
be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the directors who are to retire by rotation at the meeting.
All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.
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Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa and Mr.
Kazuo Kawasaka will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Article of Association, Mr. Yasuhiro
Yamada and Mr. Masaru Takahashi, being new Directors appointed
on 1 July 2021, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS" INDUCTION AND CONTINUQUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment of director(s), each new director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. The Company encourages the Directors to
enrol in a wide range of professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), and
corporate governance practices so that they can continuously acquire
their relevant knowledge and skills. Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code, during the year, the Company has organized a seminar
conducted by qualified professionals and has provided updates on the
Group's business, operations, and financial information, as well as other
information and briefings from time to time to all Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
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2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board has performed the above duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”)
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Dr.
Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Masaru Takahashi. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held
to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board, make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new directors
and have concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
expertise and independence to carry out the Board'’s functions and
responsibilities and assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and (ii) consider and recommend Mr. Yasuhiro
Yamada and Mr. Masaru Takahashi to the Board as the new Executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director in accordance with
the nomination policy and Board Diversity Policy.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy with effect from 1 January
2019. The nomination of candidate(s) is made in accordance with
certain selection criteria: (a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment
and experience; (c) commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and (d) diversity in all aspects including but not limited
to professional experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and
length of service, in assessing and selecting proposed candidates
for directorship. The relevant procedures are set out in nomination
policy for the Nomination Committee to follow subject to provisions
in the Articles of Association and applicable Listing Rules. The Board
recognizes the need for appointment or re-election of directors, the
following nomination procedures should be followed:

(@)  The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy.

(b)  The Nomination Committee shall identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships.

(0 The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

(d)  The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-election of directors and
succession planning for directors.

(e)  Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting.

) The Board shall have the final decision on all matters in respect
of the recommendation of candidates to stand for election or re-
election at any general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code and the majority of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors’ remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange respectively.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual
adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and be determined at the discretion of the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka
Ando, Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Masaru Takahashi. Mr. Masaru
Takahashi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
to review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for directors’ and senior management’s remuneration as well as
the remunerations of the new directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the Group’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, review of the Group’s financial information, overseeing the
relationship with external auditor of the Company (including but not
limited to making recommendation to the Board on appointment and/
or removal of external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of that external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards), and
overseeing the corporate governance and compliance matters. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, Mr. Masaru Takahashi and
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Masaru Takahashi is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.
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During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held to review
the Group’s financial results including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such financial statements.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
them to be effective and adequate.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

FR - BREESCRITNASHE  EHNAEE
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CHHEEEFRRITESY  TERZEY
BIRER 2 mEM -
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EXEERZEEER

executive Director with effect from 1 July 2021.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, BEEFNAFELRESSSH T8 HK
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year are RERBFRE 285 0T
set out below:
Meetings attended/held
BHIE/BIT28%
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=g BEREEY MEE" REZE® MR
Directors £ & 23 23 o5 BERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando ZHERLE 6/6 - 212 212 1
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa FERENRL A 6/6 - - - il
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RABBERLE 6/6 - - - il
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka NIRFAE R A 6/6 - - - 11
Mr. Munehiko Ono' NERERE! 3/3 - - - 1
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada? AL ? 373 - - - -
Independent BUHRTEE
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto ARG KIE L 6/6 4/4 212 212 11
Mr. Junichi Honda? AL E—FKE3 3/3 212 212 212 11
Mr. Masaru Takahashi* i)t 33 22 - - -
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano — # B =2, TH#% 5/6 3/4 - - 1”7
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RIFMEEE 6/6 - - - il
Notes: FisE
1. Mr. Munehiko Ono has resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1 1. NERESEFREIRITESE  H2021 67 A1
July 2021, AR -
2. Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada has been appointed as Executive Director with 2. BB EEEZTRMITES - B 2021 F 7
effect from 1 July 2021. A1 BEAR -
3. Mr. Junichi Honda has resigned as Independent Non-executive Director 3. REBE—SHERHEE I IFMITES - A 2021 F7
with effect from 1 July 2021. A1 BERBAERK-
4. Mr. Masaru Takahashi has been appointed as Independent Non- 4. SRBEERZERBILIENITES - B 2021

F7 81 HRERS -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AuDIT

The Board has entire responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Group's accounting, financial reporting and the effective systems of risk
management and internal control are in place.

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in
annual report, interim report, inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Board, supporting by the finance functions of the Group, is
responsible for overseeing the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements which shall give a true and fair view of the Group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Directors ensure that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed to prepare the financial statements with appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates and ensure the financial
statements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The management has provided sufficient explanation and information
of the Group’s financial, operational performance as well as business
development and also with management accounts and monthly updates
to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the Group's performance, financial position and Group’s prospects
to enable the Board and each Director to discharge their duties. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The Group recognises that the independence of an external auditor
is a fundamental governance principle. External auditor provides the
Board and shareholders an objective assurance on whether the financial
statements fairly represent the financial position and performance of
the Group in all material aspects.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of the external auditor,

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out on pages 77 to 82 in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5
core stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation,
(c) risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e) risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the
following risk responses:

- Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable
based on Group’s risk appetite and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

- Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial and actions
such as controls have to be taken to reduce the impact and
vulnerability to an acceptable level.

- Sharing: Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group
itself cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptably low
level, therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or
shared with other parties by insurance, outsourcing, etc.

- Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure
both internally and externally to reduce the risk to an acceptable
level, or involve unreasonably high cost to reduce the risk to
an acceptable level. Therefore, activities giving rise to the risks
should be avoided.

The Group has adopted the COSO ERM Framework, the “Top-Down”
approach, in establishing its risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Taskforce and various departments within the Group.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken
in achieving the Group’s business objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the overall
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in overseeing
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and conduct independent annual reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Risk Management Taskforce, which consists of key management
staff, is to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems and ensures that
sufficient resources are allocated to maintain the adequacy and
effectiveness of such systems within the Group in order to reduce the
risks or potential risks to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s
objectives.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and managing
risks within its operation, ensuring that appropriate internal controls for
effective risk management are implemented and any significant internal
control deficiency is reported to the Risk Management Taskforce timely
for a prompt mitigation action.

At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies
risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to
a set of standard criteria. For significant risks, mitigation plans are
designed and managed by corresponding risk owners. The report on
risk management and internal control is submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee annually.

In addition, the internal audit department is established to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee to evaluate internal controls and
management procedures of the Group. For any deficiencies in the
design and implementation of internal controls, recommendations for
improvement will be made to the management. Significant deficiencies
are reported to the Board and the Audit Committee on a timely basis
ensuring remedial actions are taken promptly. The internal audit
department submits an annual report with a summary of findings and
recommendations to the Board and the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Board had performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group based on the requirement of Code Provision C.2 of the
CG Code. The coverage of the review includes but not limited to the
Group's ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s review
on risk management and internal control systems; the result of internal
audit work with consideration and management responses on major
findings; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board
regarding the result of risk and internal control review; significant
failures or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and
the status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate in all material respects.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. External independent professional
consultants will be engaged if the Board considers it necessary.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a formal policy on engaging non-audit
services from its independent auditor to ensure that the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor would not be impaired by its
provision of any non-audit services to the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was set out as follows:

[\ 3R Ko O B BE 4% R At S E B I B T X 30K
BrmE: - BEREAIEREEIFBEREEREE
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HEEXBERREHESR

ZE T &

ARREHIEERNKRE - BRI LA IE
BZRT - UWBRINEZBEE TSR SAKEIR
WERIFEEREMBELE LR TEIE -

REBEFR - BN ERE SR =R &5t Ah1T
ZBEEHmT

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FriR it AR B ENER
HK$'000

FAT

Audit Services ZER 4,519
Non-audit services IERZE RS 348
Total HEt 4,867

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has implemented procedures and internal control for
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
in place the inside information policy which sets down guidelines and
procedures for directors and certain employees who, because of their
office or position in the Company may from time to time encounter
inside information (as defined in the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")), to ensure that
they understand the principles underlying the obligations in order to
comply with the disclosure requirements so that inside information is
handled with prudence and disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. The Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential before the information
is disclosed to the public, if the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading,
or false or misleading through omission of a material fact with a view
of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external
services provider. Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo") was appointed as the
Company Secretary in March 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with over 29 years of
experience in the field of company secretarial services. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15 hours of
the relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management
Company Limited, who is responsible for overseeing and managing
overall business planning, public relations and administration and
compliance matters of the Company, is the primary contact person of
the Company with Mr. Lo.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure shareholders and the investment community to have equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information and allow
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to shareholders mainly through the
Company'’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other general
meetings as well as the published disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company's official websites.

SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 55 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting,
and extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on such
requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitionists,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance. If at any time there are
not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors capable of acting to
form a quorum, any Director or any two or more members of the
Company representing at least 10.0% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings, may convene an
extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors.

Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the general
meeting.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

ARE

RARZMEBEEINA TN RIS ER - B2
L ([REE DI 2016 F 3 AEZRE AR TR
E2-BELEAEBEHMATEE  RARME
RIS BINHE A 8 29 FAEE - RIE AR RIE 3.29
1§ BEACHREZR 2021512 A31 BIEFE
ey S R (AN =12 s =

BERmEB)EEARAFEFTERRL AL
BEEEREEANR ZEEBEGMRE - QHMH
BRITERRARER  RAARETEREBELLY
B2AL-

P
R
B
o

HIRRZEE
ARFTARIERIE - DERBRRNEE
BT SHERSEBTERIRBROER - AR
S BRERAT LA 5 AT SR -

ARREEFBEFBRE  BRREAFAGRHE
BRARE - ARIER T AL EHN ARG
Wbz D TIEREEHARREEERR

B ERHEF
RRBMRREIAS

RBEGERARE S 5 EEEAREARK
A ARRRENAS - WAERRIEDIFE]ED
FREAFBRERAE  EEXBKRERH
BRERFFRIAE - BT B A RHERGIFTRT E BB HKA
BRBRREBRIARE - MAEERKIR  EEERE
RHBEATERNERUBBOETE AR BIAR
AR —BEFR AR BRI LBR(REE#E
RBRAE ERERRZAABRRZ BIREEE
410.0%) - HRAIARAIEECIE R B HEHNT
A - ARBRFRIAE °

RIBRREDGIE 567 6 - RIZARRPISE 566 15
AARBRRAGZES  ANRERIZHREMR
RRW AR 2 21 BRAERBERAR - MR

SRAEARBRRAGRAMNEL AR 28 A
PERTT



Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing not
less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders; or
not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution or business to be
dealt with at the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow the
requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting.

Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Sending enquiries to the Board by shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and concern to the
Board at the Company’s headquarters at 11-13 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The management of the Company is committed to meeting with
shareholders, institutional investors, research analysts and financial
media regularly and providing timely updates on the financial
and business performance and recent development. Investors are
welcome to direct their enquiries to the Company’s Investor Relations
Department at ir@nissinfoods.com.hk. A dedicated Investor Relations
section is also available on the Company’s website (www.nissingroup.
com.hk). Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Investors and analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, telephone
conferences, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums will be conducted from time
to time in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community. In 2021, the Company
conducted more than 133 meetings (2020: 210 meetings) with over
260 institutional investors (2020: 550 institutional investors) and
research analysts in Hong Kong and elsewhere. During the year, the
Company was covered by 11 investment banks (2020: 14 investment
banks) and security firms to encourage mutual communication with the
investment community.
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Major Investor Relations Events in Financial Year 2021

2021 T EEFTEREEBEETH

2021 Event Organiser Location
2021 EE BprE Ho B
Q1 China Consumer Corporate Day 2021 Virtual Citi Hong Kong
F—=F China Consumer Corporate Day 2021 Virtual TEIE BB
Consumer Homegrown Corporate Day Nomura Hong Kong
Consumer Homegrown Corporate Day Ep B
CGI-3rd Annual HK/China Small-Mid Cap Virtual Corporate Day CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
CGl-3rd Annual HK/China Small-Mid Cap Virtual Corporate Day #R7 — B 2 7% %5 BA
Post Result Non-Deal Roadshows (“NDR") Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
FREIBIR FER + 717 BB
Post Result NDR Daiwa Hong Kong
RIERIRR N B
Post Result NDR DBS Hong Kong
FERKR ER B
Post Result NDR Nomura Hong Kong
FREIBIR AT BB
Post Result NDR First Shanghai Hong Kong
RIERIRR F—8 5
Post Result NDR Guoyuan Hong Kong
FERKR BT S
Post Result NDR CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
FREIEIR HRon — SR 5 BB
Post Result NDR Okasan Hong Kong
RIERIRR i = 5
Q2 Consumer and Gaming Conference 2021 (Virtual) Daiwa Hong Kong
F-=F Consumer and Gaming Conference 2021 (FE#%) AN BB
Virtual China Summit Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
R e FER + 717 BB
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2021 Event Organiser Location
2021 & AE) BirE Ho
Q3 Post Result NDR Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
F==F RIERIRR FEAR + 717 e
Post Result NDR DBS Hong Kong
E- 30 ER B
Post Result NDR Daiwa Hong Kong
FREIBIR PNl BB
Post Result NDR First Shanghai Hong Kong
E 1 3705 - e
Post Result NDR Guoyuan Hong Kong
E 30 BT S
Post Result NDR CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
FREIBIR oA — SR 5 BB
Q4 2021 Consumer Virtual Corporate Weeks CMBI Hong Kong
FrzE 2021 Consumer Virtual Corporate Weeks FRIRBIRR BB
Post Result NDR Guoyuan Hong Kong
E- 30 BT s
20th Virtual Asia Pacific Summit Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
F20EEREANEE FEAR + 717 BB
Investment Forum 2021 Virtual Experience Nomura Hong Kong
RAWMIB 2021 EHIEEEH ESdo e

ENNSIDIR TS A NI S gt 3
BE - BEREIRA T BRARA] o

Shareholders are also encouraged to access the corporate
communication posted on the Company’s website for better
understanding of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company has published the Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year,
there was no change in the Company’s constitutional document.

HBEREH
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
instant noodles and is the vehicle holding interest of its subsidiaries,
whereas the Group is engaged in manufacturing and sales of noodles,
retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products and snacks, vegetable
products, and provision of publicity services in Hong Kong and China.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2021. Analysis of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 83 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1 January
2019, which provides the guiding principles and procedures for making
decisions on dividend payment. In deciding whether to propose
dividends, and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia: (i) the Group’s unappropriated profits/
earnings and the impact on the Group’s long-term earning capacity;
(i) the Group's results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows,
financial condition, future prospects, statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (iii) any other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Articles of Association. The dividend policy will
be reviewed periodically and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and regulatory requirements. There is no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.
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The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 14.56 HK
cents per share and a special dividend of 2.91 HK cents per share,
totalling 17.47 HK cents per share in cash to the shareholders for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which will not be subject to
any withholding tax in Hong Kong. The proposed final dividend and
special dividend are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 9 June 2022. The
proposed final dividend and special dividend will be distributed on 29
June 2022 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 20 June 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators are
set out in the sections headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five-year Financial Summary of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of risks and uncertainties faced by the Group may affect its
performance, business operations or future prospects. Some of which
are inherent to the specific circumstances of the Group and some are
from the external threats or challenges. Major risks are summarised
below.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Given ever-changing global social and economic environment, there
might be greater likelihood for the Group to face challenging changes
of governmental policies/regulatory requirements in normal course of
business.

Climate and ESG

With respect to growing expectations from stakeholders, governmental
regulations on climate-related issues and Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) disclosure picked up in 2021, and more regulations
are expected in the future. The Group will continue to review the
impact of transition risk and opportunities for climate change.

Public Health

Governmental policies and protocols for addressing the pandemic may
significantly impact the operations and performance of the Group'’s
business.

Trade (and tariff) Policies

The increasing uncertainty over the political environment and evolving
changes in trade policies may limit the Group’s operation effectiveness.
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By engaging external counsels to provide regular updates and legal
guidance, and providing regular trainings for staff, the Group will
continue to ensure all Group practices comply with relevant laws and
regulations.

Supply Chain Management Risk

Ongoing pandemic, severe weather and the blockage of the Suez Canal
have driven another difficult year for supply chains. Inflation has been
accelerated in many countries as a result of supply chain disruptions.

The Group is re-designing alternative supply chain flows to mitigate the
impact of global supply chain disruption.

Food Safety Risk

The Group’s success depends on its branding and reputation and
consumers’ recognition and trust in its products. Food safety is the
Group's lifeblood. Food safety incidents may damage its reputation and
cause a loss of consumers’ trust in its products. The profitability of the
Group may be impacted as a result.

As a manufacturer of products intended for human consumption, the
Group places high emphasis on food safety and quality management
to ensure the health and safety of its customers. Therefore, the food
production plants of the Group are all certified under ISO 22000, an
international standard for quality management systems. In addition, the
Fujian Plant has also been certified under FSSC1 22000, an international
standard that incorporates food defence approaches, reflecting the
Group’s commitment to a high standard of food safety. To further
promote product safety, the Shunde Plant has adopted the HACCP2
system to identify hazardous substances and reduce risk on production.

The Group has also applied rigorous analysis and inspections for raw
materials and products. The Food Safety Evaluation & Research Institute
Co., Ltd. (the “Institute”) located in Shanghai, the PRC, in which the
Group owns a 5% stake, provides technical support to the Group to
perform quality inspections in each stage of production, from raw
materials to products. The Institute is accredited by the PRC National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment with ISO/IEC 17025.
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Labour Supply Risk

Due to keen competition in the labour markets in Hong Kong and
the PRC, the ability to retain experienced and competent production
workers is one of the key success factors for the Group. Ample control
over turnover rate will not only minimise training and recruitment costs,
but also reduce the impact on business expansion plans.

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. As part of the
measures to mitigate the labour supply risk, the Group will continue to
enhance production automation in order to improve efficiencies and
reduce reliance on manual labour. The Group will also continue putting
efforts to improve the working conditions of production sites and to
launch engagement programs so as to increase employees’ loyalty.

Business Competition Risk

There is an increasing number of competitors and products, both
local and foreign brands, targeting different customer segments. The
Company may face challenges in the market, which in turn may impact
on its profitability and return on investment.

The Group's success partly depends on its ability to anticipate, identify
and react to changes in consumers’ tastes, preferences, perceptions,
income, lifestyle and health awareness and to offer, in a timely manner,
new products that appeal to the customers. Its ability to continue to
distinguish its products from its competitors is also one of the keys to
success.

The Group continues to enhance its brand recognition and awareness
among a variety of customer segments through multi-faceted marketing
strategies.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

0]

(i)

(iii)

Relationship with Customers

The Group places a strong emphasis on establishing and
maintaining solid and stable business relationships with
its customers through its commitment to offer safe, tasty,
differentiated and trendy products. It also stays connected with
customers through channels like the Company’s homepage,
promotions, marketing materials and incentives, and social media
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preferences.

Relationship with Distributors

The Group has developed a strong distribution network which
in turn enables it to maintain a leading position in the market.
In order to maintain a long term and stable business relationship
with its distributors, the Group enters into distribution agreements
with its major distributors under which the distributors place
purchase order from time to time that typically set out the types,
prices and quantities of products to be purchased.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group procures a majority of raw materials from independent
third-party domestic and overseas suppliers. It has different
suppliers for each type of raw materials for both Hong Kong and
the PRC operation to avoid overreliance on any single supplier.

Meanwhile, the Group procures a portion of raw materials, such as
a soup base, seasoning and condiments from Nissin Japan with
the belief that it has better quality control and some of the raw
materials are unique.

The Group also carefully selects its suppliers by evaluating
their overall track record, financial strengths, reliability,
competitiveness, stability of supply, quality control measures,
pricing as well as logistics arrangements. It also closely
communicates with and monitors its suppliers and requires
them to provide food safety certificates for their supply of raw
materials.
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(iv) Relationship with Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group. As at
31 December 2021, the Group has a total of 3,590 employees
in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the purpose of sustainable
business development, the Group spares no efforts in recruiting
talented professionals. It also provides continuing education
and training programmes to employees so as to improve their
skills and develop their potentials. The Group believes that the
working environment and the supports and benefits provided to
the employees have contributed to maintaining good working
relationships.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 December 2017 (the “Listing
Date”). The total proceeds from the Listing involving the issue
of 268,580,000 ordinary shares of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$950.8 million. During the year, the Group has
applied the net proceeds according to the plans disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. We
have been and will continue exploring strategic partnerships and/or
acquisitions targets as part of our business development in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT TREASURY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held unlisted structured notes in
an aggregate fair value of US$25.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$199.0 million) (“Structured Notes”) issued by a financial institution
in Hong Kong. The Structured Notes are interest-rate linked instrument
with enhanced interest rates which accrues interest based on accrual
interest rate, and can be extended and rolled over on a monthly basis
unless the Group exercises the right to redeem the Structured Notes on
maturity date. The Structured Notes carried interest ranging from 0.24%
to 0.55% per annum during the year (2020: ranging from 0.3% to
2.4%), and represented approximately 3.78% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2021. The purchases of the Structured Notes
were funded by internal resources of the Group as a cash management
tool in order to utilise surplus fund to generate income and were
conducted in accordance with the Company’s established treasury
policy to enhance returns for its shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments of
individual fair value of 5% or above of the Group’s total assets during
the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 59.5% (2020: 65.6%) of the Group’s
total revenue and the largest customer accounted for 21.1% (2020:
23.6%) of the Group's total revenue. The Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 22.1% (2020: 22.5%) of the Group's total purchases
and the largest supplier accounted for 6.5% (2020: 7.1%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates, or any of the existing
shareholders who, to the best knowledge of the Directors owned 5.0%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company, has a beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$265.0 million, and property, plant and equipment with
carrying values of HK$70.0 million were disposed.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company bought back a total of 26,529,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$156.38
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) at price
ranging from HK$5.32 to HK$6.40 per share. The particulars of the
buyback are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s distributable reserve at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$454.0 million (2020: HK$573.0 million) which
represented retained profits of the Company as at that date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka

Mr. Munehiko Ono (resigned on 1 July 2021)
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada (appointed on 1 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda (resigned on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (appointed on 1 July 2021)
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr.
Toshimichi Fujinawa and Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka will retire from office as
Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada and Mr. Masaru Takahashi, being
new Directors appointed on 1 July 2021, shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Munehiko Ono resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 1
July 2021 due to work rearrangement; and Mr. Junichi Honda resigned
as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2021
in order to devote more time to his other commitments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for specific term. All Directors are also
subject to the retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interest or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

RBROz2ER

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature

BEEUT g5t/ 1HE

Kiyotaka Ando Beneficial owner
RS R BaERAA
Interest of spouse

ACiBayfEan

Toshimichi Fujinawa Beneficial owner

BERERA EmfBA

Shinji Tatsutani
RABEIR

Kazuo Kawasaka

JISRAE

Munehiko Ono®
NEFRE S

Yasuhiro Yamada
LU Eﬂ /J\\%x

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HJ

Beneficial owner

BaRBEAA

Beneficial owner

BaEAA

Beneficial owner

BaREAA

Beneficial owner

EmfBEA

ERMAERRQA

RiE ETRBIE 313 1§ - AARSEESEII
WITEEZFEBUMERE - ARRRBRME
BUFRITERREY ©

EERRBTHABNES N
FE
MR2021F 12 31 B EFERARAZEITH
ANEBRAR RS H MBS AE (EERFES B
BHIEHIZE XV ) 2 &% - BRI KR (ERE S T %
A () BREBEFFLEEENE xv HETRSD
%%ﬂﬁz}x A B R T 2 e wm ok B (B IERE
ﬁ&ﬁsﬁiﬂwuM—rﬂxx%ﬁ”‘f’ﬁﬂaﬁﬁ%ﬁwi
m&ﬁﬁﬁx (B - 3k (o) BREER REEGIIE
352 KRR AR IR ﬁﬂai‘tuaﬂ%}z%ﬁu& ¢B Bk (o)
IRIRIZAEST BB AN 8 AR A B 22 P 2 M o Sk

B
Number of Shares Percentage
held/interested of interest
FisFiE B IR 8B 3]
18,859,480 1.80%
558,710 0.05%
1,101,000 0.11%
53,460° 0.01%
57,030° 0.01%
35,1103 0.00%
44,630° 0.00%
2,270° 0.00%



Long position in the Shares of associated corporation

REEEBR O 25 R

Name of associated

Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature
BEEME MREEE BT 51,/ HE
Kiyotaka Ando Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
2RISR HERAR BEmEaA A
Toshimichi Fujinawa Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
BRRERE HERAR BEnlEBA
Shinji Tatsutani Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
RABEIR HERAR BEmEa A
Kazuo Kawasaka Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
JI3RFN A HERAR BEnEBEA
Munehiko Ono® Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
NERE® HERAR BEmEa A
Yasuhiro Yamada Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
LB A5 HERAR BEnEBA

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando directly in his personal name.

Mrs. Aina Ando is the spouse of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Mrs. Aina Ando is interested or deemed to be interested under the SFO.

These shares are the shares granted by the Company pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Among 10,030 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, 10,000
shares were held directly by him and 30 shares were held by a director
NN = s

share ownership association, namely BB R Mm% B4 &, as a nominee
of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando.

These shares were held by an employee share ownership association,

Ea O

namely R/ R MIEESFHHEE, as a nominee of the respective Director.

Mr. Munehiko Ono has resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1
July 2021,

W

2.

Number of Shares Percentage
held/interested of interest
FisFiEB RSB EmADL
10,0304 0.01%

1,296° 0.00%

1,836 0.00%

4,200 0.00%

3,818° 0.00%

771° 0.00%

ZEROBLTEBEEEENEFAALEEER
5o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives
Interests in Securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have any competing interests directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group which require to be disclosed as defined in the
Listing Rules during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL AND OTHERS SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as known to any Directors, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

RRGOZHA

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature
R ER 8 H1n,/ &
Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
HERX BmEAA

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Shares itself are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations are regulated by Hong Kong
and the PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in Hong Kong
and the PRC. In particular, as a food and beverage manufacturer, the
Group's operations are regulated by the food safety and environmental
protection laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year under review, the Group did not have any material non-compliance
with such laws and regulations.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share award scheme disclosed in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

Nissin Japan (the controlling shareholder of the Company) has entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 21
November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) pursuant to Nissin
Japan irrevocably undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly
or indirectly sell any of its instant noodles, frozen foods, snack and
confectionery products to Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and
Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group Territory) which would or may compete with
the business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition
have been set out in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholder” in the Prospectus of the Company dated 29
November 2017. The Company has received the confirmation from
Nissin Japan in respect of their compliance with the terms of the Deed
of Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year; and (ii) there is no contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Company'’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following Directors have served on the Board of subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2021:

MEBARES

ATREER 2021 F 12 A 31 BIEEEARRFIME
NREE

Place/Country

Name of Subsidiaries of Incorporation and Operation

= PNSIE FEAR S R AS &b BB Name of Directors EEUE
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEaE
B/ERmM(EFE)BRATF BE Takeshi Kikunaga oK fiE
Tse Chi Ping, Roy A EF
Keiji lwakiri E=17)1= -
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZEEEE
Company Limited BB Toshimichi Fujinawa A
BERMEB) EEERAT Shinji Tatsutani RABERX
Yasuhiro Yamada L A4S
Takakazu Yamada IEE=
Motoyoshi Tachibana TIEARE
Takeshi Shigemi ZEESL
Hiromichi Kimura VIV REGHE]
Tse Chi Ping, Roy HEF
Nissin Koikeya Foods (China & HK) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando THEaE
Co., Limited B Takashi Koike N
(“Nissin Koikeya Foods") Naomichi Fujimaki BESiEE
BBEMHE (R« E#) BRAA] Keiji Iwakiri E=p0)) = -
(=ppiib =) Takeshi Kikunaga Bk hE
Hiromichi Kimura VA7
Winner Food Products Limited Hong Kong Lau Wing Leung Max 25Kk 52
K RmARAT BE Kiyotaka Ando THEBE
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Yasuhiro Yamada I A§
Katsunori Hiroi B Al
Toshimichi Fujinawa FERETIR
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEaRE
Limited aBE Kazuhito Baba BIHZAA
BEARZEBRAA Masamune Komori IR
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Kosuke Fukushima BEEN

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H
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Place/Country

Name of Subsidiaries of Incorporation and Operation
i) EPNGIEE FEMAR S R AS b BB Name of Directors BEEME
Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co., Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEE
Limited BB Takeshi Kikunaga oK
ARERBRM (BB BRAH Toshimichi Fujinawa BEETE
Keiji Iwakiri at=
Hiromichi Kimura ARFHRE
Yoshihide Watanabe EIEEE
Norio Izutsu FERE
Hideaki Tsuruda HBHFSH
Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando THEaRE
BBERIEBRAF BB Kazuo Kawasaka JI3RFNE
Hiromichi Kimura ARFHRE
ValleyFarm Holdings Limited Hong Kong Yasuhiro Yamada A4S
BREAERBR AR BE Ho King Yin Edwin A E
Toshimichi Fujinawa FERETA
Takeshi Kikunaga oK fE
Kozo Nagura BRME
Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited Hong Kong Takakazu Yamada 1L FH 220
Y e/t THRAFR BE Shinji Tatsutani REER
Yasuhiro Yamada L S
Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Mainland, China Kiyotaka Ando TSR
Limited A Kazuo Kawasaka JIIRAAE
HERm(FE)REGRAF Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Xi Xiaotong EEEfY
Gen Matsunobu MIEZ,
Yutaka Komori NERFE
Katsunori Hiroi EHEA
Zhao Xiongda R
Gu Chunlei EE
Liu Jing 2 &
Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company Mainland, China Kiyotaka Ando e =113
Limited A A Kiyoshi Matsuura MER
MIBERMERAT Yasuhiro Yamada LB A§H4
Shinji Tatsutani RAEER
Kazuo Kawasaka JIRFNAE
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Name of Subsidiaries

()= NCIEL

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co. Ltd.
ERIEERASFRMAERAT

all

Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited
HET B RAHRARERAT

Dongguan Nissin Packaging Co. Ltd.
ZHBEBERRAR

Fujian Nissin Foods Co. Ltd.
BERFRMARAT

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company
Limited
WEREBREERAT

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.*
FEREESERAT

*  For identification purpose only

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

Place/Country
of Incorporation and Operation
ERIPAVINE Sb:i k=T E

Mainland, China
AR B A

Mainland, China
AR A

Mainland, China
R A

Mainland, China
R D,

Mainland, China
AR B A

Mainland, China
AR A

BRMBERAR

Name of Directors

Kiyotaka Ando
Yasuhiro Yamada
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Takayuki Yagi
Hirofumi Inoue

Katsunori Hiroi

Ho Ming Dong
Kiyotaka Ando
Shinji Tatsutani
Takakazu Yamada
Shunsuke Teranishi
Yasuhiro Yamada
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Liang Jin Ting

Quan Shi Bin

Yasuhiro Yamada
Toshiaki Miyagawa
Kiyotaka Ando
Takakazu Yamada

Kiyotaka Ando

Fung Kam Shing Barry
Yasuhiro Yamada
Shinji Tatsutani
Kiyoshi Matsurra

Toshimichi Fujinawa
Kiyotaka Ando
Yasuhiro Yamada
Takakazu Yamada
Atsushi Matsuura

Yutaka Komori
Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Hiromichi Kimura
Liu Feng
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every directors shall be entitled
to the indemnity out of the assets of the Company against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance. Such permitted indemnity provision was in force
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and remains in force at the
date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Directors of the Company is decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
performance, operating results and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not make any
charitable or other donation.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has put in place policy to promote environmental protection.
In order to reduce environmental impacts at every stage of its business
activities, the Group adopts a wide range of policies to control pollutant
emissions, to encourage recycling of office supplies, to use water
saving facilities, and to ensure compliance with environmental laws and
regulations both in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Environment, social and governance report will be published to the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively in May
2022 in the manner as required by Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSCTION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. We set out below details
of the connected transaction for our Group, in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 23 December 2021, the Company and Mitsubishi entered into a
share sales and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase, and Mitsubishi agreed to sell, 300 ordinary shares
of MCMS, representing 30% of the total issued shares of MCMS for the
consideration of approximately HK$13.7 million (the “Consideration”).
Mitsubishi is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of MCMS. The
Consideration is determined based on arm’s length negotiation
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between parties and with reference to the (i) historical earnings and
financial performance of MCMS and (ii) the future business prospects
and financial performance of MCMS. The Board is of the view that the
Acquisition is beneficial to the business growth and development of
the Group in the long term. The completion of the Acquisition took
place on 5 January 2022. With effective from the completion date, the
Company holds 81% interest in MCMS and MCMS remains as a non-
wholly own subsidiary of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules required to be disclosed in this annual report.

TERFTHON RTEBRSE () BEREZBE
BMEFBERE R () BERZEZRREBITR
KB RIETE - EFER/WBEHRYAKE
REZEGERRBERAN - WEEASK 2022
F1ASHEXR - BKBHE  AREKAEE
BREE 81% #n - MEBEERERANRRZIE
2EMEAT -

FHERER S

FR - ARBERIMLATERRFRIZE 2 158
MERS (ERR LTRAE 14A5) -

Transaction

Transaction Agreement  Connected parties involved  Nature of Relationship Annual caps  amount in 2021
R20214
R 5t K2 BETS BAELE FE LR 2RI TR
HK$million HK$million
BEBT ABETT
Technology and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 26.0 17.5
Trademark Licencing
Agreement (Note D
Fedfo % R R A ek HERZ PERR AR R
(G
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The Company entered into the Technology and Trademark Licencing
Agreement with Nissin Japan on 21 November 2017, pursuant to which
Nissin Japan granted:

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain technology
and trademarks (the “Nissin Trademarks and Technology”) in our
business in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group
Territory) and export of its products bearing and/or using the Nissin
Trademarks and Technology; and

(ii) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain trademarks (the
“Nissin Koikeya Trademarks”) in distribution of products bearing
the Nissin Koikeya Trademarks in the HK Group Territory.

The term of the Technology and Trademark Licencing Agreement is
three years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be automatically
renewable for further terms of three years upon expiry subject to
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless and until
terminated upon the breach of any undertakings in any material respect
by the Group or otherwise mutually terminated by the parties in writing at
least 90 days in advance.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Technology
and Trademark Licencing Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2020. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 November
2019.

On 21 November 2017, the Company has entered into a snacks supply
agreement (the “Snacks Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods,
the connected subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
supply potato chips products to Nissin Koikeya Foods for its onward sales.
The term of the Snacks Supply Agreement is three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of
three years subject to applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks Supply Agreement
does not contain any provision which allows either the Company or Nissin
Koikeya Foods to terminate the agreement during its term. The Directors
consider that it would be more cost-efficient in the long run to produce
the potato chips products on its own and it would ensure a more stable
supply of quality products.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Snacks Supply
Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from 1 January
2020. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 7 November 2019.

og
at
3
™
o

—_

R2017F 11 A21 B ARBIEBBERAKRE L
BT REE T - Bt BEAAEY -

() SEERFATARE REE R +F
- a2 EREEHRE)ETES
R AENE RS AE R BB R A
B R R BT 1) B EE B R R A T R R
[

(i)  FBRAATARE RNEEBEELHR
HAHENE BB WLERR( BEHBE
EZ) MEMBERE THEE -

BT AR R LT AERSE=F - &
AREMERE ETARAERRESBEN=
FBRIFREEAEEEEAEATEERER
HEGRR R IESRAT O RAIE D 90 RIAEE TS
A AR RIS

R2019F 11 A78 » RARIEE LI REIEA
Wik 0 H2020FE 12 AN BRE—SER=F - &

AR 515 - F2EARRARA2019F11 A7
HERAE -

R2017F 11 21 B ARAEBEKNERQR
REBHHERBIILEREEHZ ([SREERD
&) Bt ARRIAERAENLERMEE
ZREMBEHNEBHE - TREERZES 2017
F1 A1 ARAH=F WA RBHEIRE EH
BANERRTE—FTER=F BRI
THRTEAIRI - TREERBLEHE RTEAD
Ak BB R R MR B HIR R AR I 1R T
g - EE2RA - REMs BTEEZRE®
EEAKAE - WA BREBENEEEMR
Egc

R2019F 11 A7 8 AAREEZTRHEERZ
B2020F 1 A1 ARRE—SEHR=F - BUAX
S5 F2BAREHSA2019F 11 A7 H

D -



Nissin Foods HK has entered into an agreement (the “Snacks and
Confectionery Purchase Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods on
21 November 2017 to govern the sales and purchase of snacks and
confectionery. The term of the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase
Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon
expiry for further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks
and Confectionery Purchase Agreement does not contain any provision
which allows either Nissin Foods HK or Nissin Koikeya Foods to terminate
the agreement during its term. The transactions contemplated under the
Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement are intra-group connected
transactions. Before the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK in August 2015,
the Company has been performing the sales function within the Group
and it has a long term and direct business relationship with its distributors
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. After the incorporation of Nissin
Foods HK, it has taken up the sales function within the Group.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Snacks and
Confectionary Purchase Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. On 31 August 2020, the Group
adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$32.0 million,
HK$35.0 million and HK$HK$39.0 million to HK$50.0 million, HK$70.0
million and HK$98.0 million, respectively, in order to meet the business
growth of the snacks and confectionary of the Group. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
November 2019 and 31 August 2020.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 21
November 2017. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years
subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during
its term. The raw materials supplied under the Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement include seasoning, oil, addictive,
flour, milk etc. The Company mainly sources such raw materials through
the Nissin Japan Group in order to gain access to the suppliers in Japan
more efficiently and to benefit from the lower procurement cost when
purchases are made together with the Nissin Japan Group at a larger
volume. While the Company is able to source the raw materials from
Independent Third Parties in Japan or elsewhere, and believes it would not
be as cost-efficient when compared to the current arrangement to procure
through the Nissin Japan Group. The finished goods purchased under
the Master Raw Materials and Products Procurement Agreement mainly
include Japanese noodles products as well as confectionery products.
The Company considers that it is beneficial to the Group as a whole to
purchase the finished goods from the Nissin Japan Group for its onward
sale to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the PRC whom it
has built a long term relationship with.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement for a further term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2020. On 5 June 2020, the
Group adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$144.0
million, HK$145.0 million and HK$HK$147.0 million to HK$233.0 million,
HK$272.0 million and HK$293.0 million, respectively, in order to meet the
business growth of instant food of the Group and maintain its effective
supply chain management. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 7 November 2019 and 8 April
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2020.
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On 21 November 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement”)
with Nissin Japan to govern the supply of raw materials and finished
goods by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group. The raw materials supplied
by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include seasoning powder and
packaging materials and the finished goods supplied by the Group to the
Nissin Japan Group include instant noodles and potato chips products. The
term of the Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement is three
years commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for
further terms of three years subject to the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw
Materials and Products Sale Agreement does not contain any provision
which allows either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the
agreement during its term. For the sale of raw materials, the Group can
enjoy a lower purchasing cost by way of bulk purchases and the resale to
the Nissin Japan Group would enhance better use of the raw materials.
For the sale of finished goods, the Company considers that the sale is
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
and the terms of sale to the Nissin Japan Group are similar to those that
entered into with other distributors who are Independent Third Parties.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Product Sale Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. On 31 August 2020, the Group
adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$95.0
million, HK$115.0 million and HK$HK$140.0 million to HK$140.0 million,
HK$147.0 million and HK$154.0 million, respectively, in light with the
production capacity of the Group and expected demand of Nissin Japan
Group. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2019 and 31 August 2020.

In order to govern the provision of food safety tests by the Nissin
Shanghai Food Safety Institute to the Group, the Company has entered
into a master quality control support service agreement (the “Master
Quality Control Support Service Agreement”) on 21 November 2017
with the Nissin Shanghai Food Safety Institute. While it can engage other
Independent Third Parties to conduct the food safety tests, the Company
believes that it is more cost-efficient to engage the Nissin Shanghai Food
Safety Institute to provide such services as it has good experience in the
food safety of instant foods products and it provides quality services.
Also, it can provide the service at a more favourable rate than other
Independent Third Parties providing similar service. The term of the Master
Quality Control Support Service Agreement is three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms
of three years subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Quality Control
Support Service Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Shanghai Food Safety Institute to terminate
the agreement during its term.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 November 2019.
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The Company has entered into a master procurement agreement (the
“MCHK Master Procurement Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (“MCHK") on 22 March 2018 pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to procure the procurement products from MCHK,
which include (i) finished goods under the brands of third parties including
mineral water and beverage products, sauce products and other products
and (ii) raw materials, which include flour, starch, seasoning and material
for packaging. Sourcing of such diversified products can expand the
portfolio of the products and the Company believes that the transactions
contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the business growth
and development of the Group as a whole. The term of the MCHK Master
Procurement Agreement is from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020,
renewable upon expiry for further three years subject to compliance with
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MCHK Master
Procurement Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The Company has entered into a master supply agreement (the “MCHK
Master Supply Agreement”) with MCHK on 22 March 2018 pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to sell the supply products to MCHK,
which include instant noodles, rice vermicelli products and potato chips
and provide incidental promotional service relating to the products sold.
The Company believes that the well-established and extensive sales and
distribution network of MCHK provides an effective sale channel for the
products of the Group and the transactions contemplated under this
agreement are beneficial to the business growth and development of the
Group as a whole. The term of the MCHK Master Supply Agreement is
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, renewable upon expiry for
further three years subject to compliance with applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules.

On 21 March 2019, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2019 and
2020 from HK$453,000,000 and HK$499,000,000 to HK$492,173,000
and HK$565,999,000, respectively, in light of the business development
and the progress in production capacity of the Group.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MCHK Master
Supply Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from
1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.
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The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Mitsubishi Master
Supply Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Corporation (“Mitsubishi”) on 21
March 2019, pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell to Mitsubishi
the supply products, which include the food and beverage products.
The Company believes that the well-established and extensive sales and
distribution network of Mitsubishi provide an effective sale channel for the
products of the Group which in turn is expected to enhance the overall
sales revenue of the Group. Hence, it is believed that the transactions
contemplated under the Mitsubishi Master Supply Agreement are
beneficial to the business growth and development of the Group as a
whole. The term of the Mitsubishi Master Supply Agreement is from 1
March 2019 to 31 December 2020, renewable upon expiry for further
three years subject to compliance with applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules.

On 31 August 2020, the Group adjusted the annual cap for 2020 from
HK$15.0 million to HK$40.0 million, in order to meet the business growth
of beverage products of the Group.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the Mitsubishi
Master Supply Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “MS Master
Procurement Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Shokuhin Company Limited
(“Mitsubishi Shokuhin”) on 29 August 2019, pursuant to which the
Group has agreed to purchase from Mitsubishi Shokuhin the procurement
products, which comprise of finished goods under the brand of third
parties including snacks, confectionaries, sauce and condiment products
and other products. The Company believes the sourcing of such diversified
products can expand the portfolio of the products that the Group can
offer to its customers through its own well-established distribution and
sale channels already spread over Hong Kong and the PRC which in turn
is expected to enhance the overall income and profitability of the Group.
Hence, it is believed that the transactions contemplated under the MS
Master Procurement Agreement are beneficial to the business growth
and development of the Group as a whole. The term of the MS Master
Procurement Agreement is from 1 August 2019 to 31 December 2020,
renewable upon expiry for further three years subject to compliance with
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MS Master
Procurement Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.
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11.  The Company has entered into an agreement (“the Research Service
Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 19 March 2020. Pursuant to
the terms of the Research Service Master Agreement, the Group shall
provide research services to Nissin Japan which include, but not limited to,
researching raw materials, facilities and suppliers in the PRC to enhance
the research and development capability of Nissin Japan. The Company
believes that the entering of the agreement will enable the Group to
better utilize its existing business resources to expand its source of
income. Further, the provision of the research services will enhance the
overall research and development capability of Nissin Japan, which may in
turn benefit the Group as the Group is able to leverage on Nissin Japan's
research and development advancement. The term of the Research Service
Master Agreement is for three years commenced from the 1 April 2020
and shall be automatically renewed on the same terms and conditions for
further terms of three years upon its expiry subject to compliance with
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed
between the parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that
each of the transactions has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) and was conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed and issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;
(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;
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(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.

The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions set out above.

The Directors (including the independent Non-executive Directors) have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as independent auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2021. A resolution will be proposed to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kiyotaka Ando
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

iy FERERHEEERBRER SO EB®
RIS

(v) BEHEAAEAHENFELR-

NABHER  NAGIE S LHlFTE 2 g 5
STEMRAE VAEZHERT ©

E=(BRBYFNTESR) CEMAER KL
BFr 2 S BRIER B - AEBPTRI 2 Bt
PEREREZXZHRE LTHRAE 14A73 1§
E#H% - Qi ZERXZFERRET ETRAE
VUABIR N 2R - FEEZ  AERBIER
RUAERRTE ©

AR E FE R AR A BET R AR BIA -

B EXFTIRERESN - SR AR S IMAM TE 39 FTIER
Y E AL BARSE 7 22 5 W B RR 1B L AR BIZR T
BoRERS -

312 B ED

BEMAEMRTEAMITEELTERBE 2021 F
12 A 31 B FENBIZEE - ARRHRE
ERREFAG LIRERER  NERREHE
BRIT & EHENTT AR B2 B A2 ©

REREFE
EBER
RHBE

B 202293 A22H



To the Members of Nissin Foods Company Limited
HERMERAF
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Deloitte

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 223, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Revenue recognition from sales of goods

We identified revenue
recognition from sales of
goods as a key audit matter
due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The
Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021
in respect of sales of goods
amounted to approximately
HK$3,866,335,000.

As disclosed in note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, for sales of
goods (including noodles,
retort foods, frozen foods,
beverage products, snacks
and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has
transferred. We focused
on this area because of
the Group transacts with a
large number of customers
in particular distributors
spreading over different
locations in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of
China.

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from sales of goods
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of
the revenue recognition processes
and testing the Group’'s key
controls over revenue recognition;

e Inspecting sales contracts with
key customers, on a sample basis,
to understand the agreed trade
terms and assess whether the
related revenue was properly
recognised in accordance with
respective sales contracts and with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e Confirming amounts of total
sales of goods for the year with
selected customers, on a sample
basis; and

e Testing recorded sales transactions
on a sample basis against
corresponding goods delivery
notes, shipping documents
and acceptance confirmations
from customers that evidenced
control of the goods have been
transferred.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan, Alan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND UTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ineiEmREMPHIXAR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31HILEFE
2021 2020
20214 20205
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FHTT
Revenue WA 5 3,866,335 3,518,847
Cost of sales THE R (2,639,016) (2,360,170)
Gross profit EA 1,227,319 1,158,677
Other income HAlA 7 33,711 78,588
Selling and distribution costs THE Mo AR (492,025) (471,483)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (277,837) (243,203)
Impairment losses recognised under expected TEH{ZE E1BIE 1B M iR
credit loss model, net of reversal EEE - kRED 261 (2,585)
Other expenses HibFZ (35,167) (69,612)
Other gains and losses HibWes k&8 8 (14,321) (16,324)
Finance costs BT AR 9 (365) (116)
Profit before taxation i 25 B A 441,576 433,942
Income tax expense IR Y 10 (102,341) (101,378)
Profit for the year FANmHA 11 339,235 332,564
Other comprehensive income Hib2 Mk
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to BEE s @ E# 7 E 8w
profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on translation — BEHEINEFRELZ
of foreign operations P ERE 67,025 137,672
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREP AL 406,260 470,236
Profit for the year attributable to: I TALTEIEFRET
Owners of the Company RAREER A 303,821 301,912
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR RS 35,414 30,652
339,235 332,564
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEEFEAZE
attributable to: LNt
Owners of the Company RARER A 366,944 431,720
Non-controlling interests FEPERHI MRS 39,316 38,516
406,260 470,236
Earnings per share FRAEF 15
— Basic (HK cents) —ZARGE) 28.74 28.11
~ Diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B ) 28.74 28.10
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R BT TSIRT R

At 31 December 2021
M2021F12 831 H

2021 2020
20215 20205
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FExT FAT
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 16 1,625,369 1,515,848
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 207,510 165,265
Goodwill (RS 18 65,239 64,520
Intangible assets M EE 19 42,170 48,219
Interest in an associate REFE AR 2w 20 116 116
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABR SREE
profit or loss 21 37,210 32,828
Deferred tax assets RIEF IR E B 22 62,511 33,523
Loan receivable EUKRE K 23 821 1,368
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, I ~ BRE MR
plant and equipment Frfiize 22,057 23,288
Rental deposits Herle 26 2,051 2,307
Time deposits with maturity over one year ~ —#F A F #ifF K 85,616 -
2,150,670 1,887,282
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories w8 24 464,999 363,144
Trade receivables B 5 AR 26 475,382 508,545
Bond receivables JEYES 25 37,087 -
Other receivables, prepayments and HAbEYGRIE - FEREIE R
deposits Be 26 87,288 92,877
Loan receivable FEWE R 23 547 547
Amount due from ultimate holding company [ U g #2422 5% /A B 308 27 3,511 3,766
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R R M B A Bl5kIE 27 32,504 15,640
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEABRCEREE
profit or loss 21 198,985 197,069
Time deposits with maturity over =B A EEBTFR
three months 28 17,642 507,758
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 28 1,790,954 1,607,247
3,108,899 3,296,593
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2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FAT
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade payables Z ZENRR 29 270,227 234,540
Other payables and accruals HAbERNRIERERT & A 29 712,383 742,962
Amount due to ultimate holding company &M &R ARG A BIFRIA 27 35,144 36,712
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEf R 2B A RIFIE 27 7,199 3,715
Lease liabilities HEAR 30 5,576 7,278
Tax liabilities MIBRE 29,482 39,713
Deferred income PEIELA 31 423 411
1,060,434 1,065,331
Net Current Assets REEERE 2,048,465 2,231,262
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERABARE 4,199,135 4,118,544
Capital and Reserves ERR G
Share capital A% A 32 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves 5] 1,009,198 954,238
Equity attributable to owners of RAREB ANEEER
the Company 3,950,639 3,895,679
Non-controlling interests FEPR 1R 165,622 147,504
Total Equity e AR 4,116,261 4,043,183
Non-current Liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 22 56,270 46,311
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 5,636 9,396
Deferred income FEIELA 31 20,968 19,654
82,874 75,361
4,199,135 4,118,544

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 223 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

KIYOTAKA ANDO
RERE
DIRECTOR
EF

FE8IE223BF VIR A MR EETHN 202293

H22 AHL/ERIAETIZE L HIAT ALTRERES

SHINJI TATSUTANI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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CUNSUI.IDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
|||'ﬁ c ”n&s%ﬁ;" Ej]‘is_E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

Notes:

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HiEE

According to the articles of association and board resolution of subsidiaries
of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), 10% of the
profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, were transferred to general reserve funds under “PRC
statutory reserve”. The transfers to such reserves must be made before
the distribution of a dividend to equity owners of those subsidiaries until
the aggregated amounts have reached 50% of their registered capitals.
These reserves should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation

into capital and expansion of production and operation.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
issued by the Company, and the aggregate of (1) the share capital of
Winner Food Products Limited (“Winner Food”) and (2) the retained
earnings of Winner Food, net of non-controlling interests, prior to the
original acquisition of Winner Food by Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd., the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company, in 1989, arising
from group reorganisation on 1 January 2014.

On 22 December 2014, the Company further acquired 26% interest in
Winner Food from the non-controlling shareholder for a cash consideration
of HK$129,453,000. The difference between the cash consideration paid
and the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the additional
interest in Winner Food acquired from the non-controlling shareholder
of HK$14,403,000 is recognised in “other reserve”. Upon completion of
this acquisition, Winner Food became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEIVIENT OF CASH FLUWS 85?

|||'.ﬁ IE@

For the year ended 31 D

HE2021F12 A3 HILEFE

NMIEBIX

ecember 2021

2021 2020
20214 20205
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETTE
Profit before taxation R A A 441,576 433,942
Adjustments for: TR -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 6,775 5,714
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERERETE
equipment 28,443 22,649
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAETE 15,355 8,200
Equity-settled share-based payment AR 4 B LA AETRT A 1,431 2,754
Fair value changes on financial assets at BRATEFABGENEREEATEE
fair value through profit or loss &) 618 411
Finance costs B TR AR 365 116
Government grant related to acquisition BRI & E 2 TR,
of assets (948) (954)
Impairment losses (reversed) recognised WE 5 REMBCRIBRER )R B 18 (1
in respect of trade receivables, net of B) - MEREEE
reversal (261) 2,585
Interest income B HA (16,751) (24,615)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BRE RRE BB
equipment 17,156 112
Operating cash flows before movementin ~ &EESEBFI 2 EEHERE
working capital 493,759 450,914
Decrease in inventories FERD 38,016 98,354
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B 5 EMERFUR 2 (€ hn) 40,305 (76,641)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, E N ERTE  FEN R MRS R (18
prepayments and deposits ) 11,625 (20,805)
Increase in amounts due from fellow FEU R Z M & Bl 5RIBIE AN
subsidiaries (16,864) (12,371)
Increase in trade payables Z S ERBRFIE M 32,294 15,300
(Decrease) increase in other payables Hofth A FR0E K FEETE A CR ) 10
and accruals (21,837) 130,883
(Decrease) increase in amount due to JE S SR AR R A R FRIE (R A>) 32 00
ultimate holding company (1,811) 4,845
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to FEAH R 21 8 A BRI hn Ok 4>)
fellow subsidiaries 3,484 (1,612)
Cash generated from operations KEEECZRS 578,971 588,867
Income taxes paid =ENIZIEST (128,454) (87,252)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&EBHELCRESFE 450,517 501,615
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | =& = —4 4§
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CUNS[]LIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20205
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of time deposits with maturity GFHREBHBA=EAULEZ
of more than three months TEHFER (251,413) (1,341,139)
Placement of time deposits with maturity FHRAEBEA—FUALEZEH
of more than one year T3k (85,616) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E 4% « BiE MR (262,941) (265,907)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of g0y NCIV e vd
a subsidiary/business e F5E 36 (48,894) (34,485)
Advance to ultimate holding company Bl S UNCIE-F=N (3,511) (3,766)
Government grant in related to acquisition BRI E EFTERIE
of assets refunded R T R - (2,492)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFAERZNS
through profit or loss BiE (5,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment FRiGFIA 1,710 432
Withdrawal of time deposits with maturity ~ $2ERZIHAR A=1E AU L
of more than three months ZEHTFR 736,401 938,383
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at A F{EzFABZEZ HE
fair value through profit or loss TRUEEFTSRE - 203,246
Proceeds from disposal of other & A S BB EFTSRIA
financial assets - 156,630
Interest received B UIFLE 12,711 21,795
Government grant in related to acquisition & WA BURES B E 2 BUFfEEL
of assets received 1,675 1,195
Repayment from ultimate holding company B 44ERE A FER 3,816 5,928
Placement of rental deposits FEERS (2,363) -
Loan repaid BEER 547 547
Investment in government bond KREBNES (36,952) -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ~ ®RETBFE(FTA) 2B&F
ACTIVITIES £ 60,170 (319,633)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Contribution from non-controlling interests ~ JEIZASHEZS T E - 5,870
Buy-back of own shares 88 B & Mk H (156,380) -
Dividend paid to owners of the Company BENAARIHEAEAZKE (150,142) (125,695)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests EATIEIE SR 2 IR B (39,806) (15,221)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEaEER (8,347) (3,445)
Repayment of borrowing BEREK (3,140)
Share purchased from secondary market &1 BN EIE T BE =TS
under share award scheme == eolibap) (1,474) (2,665)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHAEaERE (365) (116)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBMAZRERE
ACTIVITIES (359,654) (141,272)

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF



2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRRSEEYILNFE
EQUIVALENTS 151,033 40,710
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE INEERBH HE
RATES CHANGES 32,674 61,276
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZBERREEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,607,247 1,505,261
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZEER
END OF THE YEAR, BEEEY
represented by bank balances and cash LASRITEER RIRE TR 1,790,954 1,607,247
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | =T = —F 4}
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE

2021 F 12 A3 HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nissin Foods Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan with its
shares listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 21-23 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, and 11-13
Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products, snacks
and vegetable products, and provision of research and publicity
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified
the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the
Committee — Cost necessary to sell inventories (HKAS
2 Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda decision,
clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs
necessary to make the sale” when determining the net realisable
value of inventories. In particular, whether such costs should be
limited to those that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
should not be limited to those that are incremental but should
also include costs that an entity must incur to sell its inventories
including those that are not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group's accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda
decision was to determine the net realisable value of inventories
taking into consideration incremental costs only. Upon application
of the Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed its
accounting policy to determine the net realisable value of
inventories taking into consideration both incremental costs and
promotion expenses. The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12 A3 BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021'

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment-
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

94 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010);

. add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) — Int
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2021, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group's liabilities.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that are primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty-that is, the accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be observed
directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set
out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the
latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.”

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
for leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities are
assessed on a net basis.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to the
amendments amounted to HK$203,270,000 and HK$11,212,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full
impact of the application of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that
were produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipments to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
(such as samples produced when testing whether the relevant
property, plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised and
measured in the profit or loss in accordance with applicable
standards. The cost of the items are measured in accordance with
HKAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses whether
a contract is onerous in accordance with HKAS 37 Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the unavoidable
costs under the contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it
and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.
Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental costs and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(for example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the Group
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the date of initial
application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (zontinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the requirement
in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled

by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HAMBHMREEEERTE

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. .%?— ‘é’ & 3‘%*& RmMBEERTE

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate.

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zamtinuer) EEHER @)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

of the goods or

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to customers to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed to
date (i.e. service contracts in which the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided), the Group
recognises revenue in an amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such
as sales rebate, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. .%?— ‘é’ & 3‘%*& RmMBEERTE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinues) EEER®

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETHBRE
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEAHA (&
(continued)
Variable consideration (continued) AIE B (&

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(@  revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be
recognised for the products expected to be returned/
exchanged);

(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and
(¢ an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of

sales) for its right to recover products from customers
and are presented as right to refunded goods assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception or
modification date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any indirect costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimated costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise prices of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEFIERABA (B2
Lease liabilities (continued) HEREE)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment; or

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct consequence
of interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease
modifications required by interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the applicable requirements in HKFRS
16 (see the accounting policy above) to account for all
lease modifications made at the same time, including those
required by interest rate benchmark reform.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HAMBHMREEEERTE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. .%?— ‘é’ & 3‘%*& RmMBEERTE

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share awards granted to employees (including directors of
the Company)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share award reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share award reserve. For the share awards that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
awards granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When shares awards are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount
accumulated in shares held for share award scheme will be
transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12 A3 HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

3.

ﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&i

B3R @)

32 FESTHEEGE

ﬁrﬁ

1S F 5 S #5 BN BB B A< B T8 SR IE R
EZ%MO

B HA & < A5 TR 3% 5 A FE ER A 8 M &
B o FEERTE AR BR B AT A
Rl RN EMEE 2 BRI AN
A BX 5 32 A R e B 7R AR TR 3 T B
B2 AE - AEBEZAHHEAE
TRERRERRCRAREE LD
M 2 TREFTE

BERIBTSRGA M BRERANEER
BEREEREERT G TA
TRIERE 2 B 1 ZRERERR o IR
HABE-RIMARRRERIEER
R - EEHAEE RSN A

BERTOE N AR SE L F R M2 &
By M ZE BRI BT A AR 2 BRI
BRER - MEREZRRE LR
(R ZETE A GHON) TR EERBUEN
grtaMe R P2 EERARE - A1
MEEHBEEENBBENE TIAR
oo LS - MRS HER R R E L

TR ER  EEHRBAGERTET
VARAE

B IAAE IR A B K2
RAREHBAZERNERIEEE
R EREET RN AEERIEE
R E AN R RAT e T R m R
S o (BTN R AR AR A M AT R R
HEREZR KL ERREREE
BNA RO - hemR%E
KREMB RIS ZREMES
IR EEE ©



3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. .%?— ‘é’ & ?%iﬁ RmMBEERTE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zamtinues) EEER®
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE
Property, plant and equipment (continued) W% BMERRE (&

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented

s “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible asset acquired separately

An intangible asset with finite useful life that is acquired
separately and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

. HEMBBRRENELERFE
ESER )

32 FESTHEEGE

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

3.

GAMBHRMRELERE
EEER @)

32 FESTHEEGE

WX BERZXE ZHAEE
ERELEE (BEKFI)) 2HEE
(&

WEE (IR ELEMN) 2T REE
BAGFSEREREE  ABEE
(FREELEN) 2 RAERAEEZE
AR E SRR - BEARBEIRAIE — B A
EORERSELBUNTEEEN
MOGEEE  AKEELER—EAE
MRS ELBENRRE(BREZD
FLEAReELEUNEEEER
MoEEEENKREE) BZARS
EEBRUMAWEEHEE - DERERS
B BEBBEELENK - UERE
EREEREEER) - BRER
BUASREERAEIRSELE
fAERIRLPIDBEEEMEE - BE
FREENEREERAHERDEK
At E) - ERAEEWREE)
REz&RE - BOIOREEEZR
BEEBSESRLAIDEESEMANE
EEXREELBEMAR - MES
BENE NRE AR ©

EREBRERED  BE(GRE
EEBEMRRNESELEMAR) 2K
EEEAAEEEFTR 2GR ATRE
TR EENRZERENEREE
(FReELFUIHASELENME
AR AEFE Y B ERRERBR
[RIEEE 2 RmEE - BEREREA
R 2 A TERR



by
3
==

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HAMBHMREEEERTE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zamtinuer) EEHBIRE)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE
Inventories &

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and
it is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities (continued)

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision
is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the reporting period in which the change in probability
occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where
no reliable estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contract with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . HGEMBHRERERHEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zamtinuer) BEEITER &)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE
Financial instruments (continued) THITHAE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEIbGETEI S

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

@

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2R
(777 1y .

Ffes ek 2R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivable, amounts due from ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, bond receivables, time deposits
with maturity over three months, time deposits with
maturity over one year and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
which are in trade nature. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. The amounts due from subsidiaries which are in
trade nature are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (jii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. .%?— ‘é’ & ?%iﬁ RmMBEERTE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zamtinuer) EEHER @)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE
Financial instruments (continued) 2HTAE)
Financial liabilities and equity 2HEERED
Classification as debt or equity NEREBNER

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and amounts due to ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these changes
by updating the effective interest rate, such change in
effective interest rate normally has no significant effect
on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or
financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
(continued)

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and
only if, both these conditions are met:

o the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
(ie the basis immediately preceding the change).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

A transaction classified as asset acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired
100% interest in Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited at
a cash consideration of HK$48,900,000. Ming Fong Packaging
& Chemicals Limited holds a portfolio of plants and machineries
and a right-of-use of the land and leasehold property which are
all located in Hong Kong.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test in
accordance with HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and concluded
that:

(i) The land and building components of each office unit,
together with the in-place leases, are considered a single
identifiable asset; and

(i) The group of property, plants and equipments is a group
of similar identifiable assets because the assets are similar
in nature and risks associated with managing and creating
outputs are not significantly different.

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
acquired is concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets
and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(continued)
Control over the charitable fund

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a charitable fund
was established by the Group (the “Fund”), and HK$40,000,000
was donated by the Group to the Fund. The directors and senior
management of the Company were nominated as members of
the advisory committee which advise and make recommendations
to the financial institution on all prospective charitable donations.

The directors of the Company assessed whether the Group has
control over the Fund based on whether the Group has the
variable returns from the relevant activities of the Fund. In making
the judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group's ability to direct the usage of donations and the possibility
of economic benefit flowing back to the Group. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that the Group does not
have variable returns from the relevant activities of the Fund and
therefore the Group does not have control over the Fund.

Donations of HK$40,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2020. No donation made to
the Fund during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated based on the
expected useful life of the intangible assets. Adjustments may
need to be made to the carrying amounts of the intangible assets
and their amortisation should there be a material change in the
expected useful life of intangible assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Amortisation of intangible assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trademarks
and customer relationship of the Group are HK$22,506,000 and
HK$19,664,000 (2020: HK$26,087,000 and HK$22,132,000)
(net of accumulated amortisation and impairment loss of
HK$55,674,000 and HK$5,459,000 (2020: HK$51,957,000
and HK$2,273,000)) respectively. Details of the trademarks and
customer relationship are disclosed in note 19.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of discount
rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate
are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets,
including potential disruptions of the Group’s manufacturing and
wholesales operations.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$65,239,000 (2020: HK$64,520,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

4.

:s'CEln #UM&{EFA-THHEH
EZZ2EERIE®

{E*‘PFEHEH RAEZEBERR(E)
BIEEE#N (E

R2021F12A8318  AEBEFELEF
R ZBEmED A 522,506,000/ 7T &
19,664,000/ 7T (20204F : 26,087,00075 7T
122,132,000/ 7T) (F0Bk R 518 MR (E S
855,674,000/ 7T % 5,459,000/ 7t (2020
% : 51,957,000/ 7T % 2,273,00087L)) °
EHREERREPAEZFBNEFE 19
f?g °

BEZ (451 E
ETEEATREAGTE I EEE RS
EEBEM (FREEESEMAER) 2B
% AMEABEIRATFEREERAZERS
EotEFHBEEANSEGERRSE
EEBN (SRS EEEMER) BEEZ KRR
ReEREREGETIRE  UFtERE - WE
BRFIFESREENTELR  AFERERE
SERTHEARKE S - BIFTREHIREARE
E518 o LA - AR Covid-19% BT REE R K
BB SRMISFERD (BIEAEERE
R#tEEBAEZE) - AFEENEARE
e RARERE KIRE R A AR E =M
7

o

MR2021F 12831 BEEREEEA
65,239,000 7T (20204 : 64,520,0005%

) - ARFTHIE S EEH 2 B R KR 18
W -
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 TR —FFER

6Co

147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s financial assets
are measured at fair value with fair value being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Whilst the Group considers these valuations are the best estimates,
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market
volatility and may cause further disruptions to the investees'/issuer’
businesses, which have led to higher degree of uncertainties
in respect of the valuations in the current year. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See note 38(c)
for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature

Trade receivables with significant balances and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature are assessed for
ECL individually. In addition, for trade receivables which are
individually insignificant or when the Group does not have
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping debtors based on the
Group's internal credit ratings.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to
greater financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led
to increased credit default rates. The information about the ECL
and the Group'’s trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature are disclosed in notes 38(b), 26 and
27 respectively.
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b.

REVENUE h. U
a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (a) REEFEHWANSIF
customers
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2021F12A318 2020%12A318
HK PRC HK PRC
Operations Operations Operations ~ Operations
(as defined (as defined (as defined  (as defined
innote 6) in note 6) Total | innote6) innote6) Total
BRER  TEER BRER  REES
(E%E (E&E (EER (EER
fizE6) Kizte) @t fi5E6) firzke) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT THT THT
Types of goods and B R RS ER
services
Sales of goods HER® 1,462,614 2,396,525 3,859,139 | 1415665 2,096,207 3,511,872
Others Hit 3,541 3,655 7,19 2,742 4,233 6,975
Total et 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335 | 1,418,407 2,100,440 3,518,847
Timing of revenue [N A5
recognition
A pointin time e 1,462,614 2,400,180 3,862,794 | 1415665 2,100,440 3,516,105
Qver time — BRI 3,541 - 3,541 2,742 - 2,742
Total Bt 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335 | 1,418,407 2,100,440 3,518,847

Note: Others mainly include revenue from sales of scrap noodle

and provision of research and publicity services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

b.

REVENUE (zamiimued)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

For sales of goods (including noodles, retort foods, frozen
foods, beverage products, snacks and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when (i) the goods have been loaded on
board for export sales; or (ii) the goods have been delivered
to the customers’ specific location for local sales and the
Group received acceptance confirmations from customers.
Upon the relevant goods are loaded on board for export
sales or delivered to the customers’ specific location for
local sales, the customers have full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, and
have the primary responsibility for selling the goods and
bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon
invoice issued.

The amount of consideration the Group receives and
revenue the Group recognises varies with changes in sales
rebates the Group offers to the customers. The Group
estimates the sales rebates based on analysis of historical
experience, and adjusts for the most likely amount of
consideration to be received. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated rebates which is estimated based on
experience. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
A refund liability (included in other payables and accruals) is
recognised for expected rebates to customers in relation to
sales made at the end of the reporting period. No element
of financing is deemed present as the sales rebates are
payable on demand from customers.
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5. REVENUE (zantinieq)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers
have a right to exchange for expiry products without
limitation of time period. The Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate the number of exchange
on portfolio level using the expected value method.
Revenue is recognised for sales which are considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognise will not occur. Based on accumulated
experience, the management considers the amount of
goods returned as immaterial due to large volume of
revenue with low value of each good sold. Therefore, the
probability of significant reversal in revenue in relation to
sales return in the future is remote.

Provision of research and publicity services
(revenue recognised over time)

Revenue from provision of research and publicity
services are recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

With the provision of research and publicity services are at
period of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according
to the major place of operations of the relevant group entities.
The Group determines its operating segments based on these
business units by reference to their respective major place of
operations, for the purpose of reporting to the chief operating
decision maker, i.e. the managing director of the Company.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

o HK Operations: Manufacturing and sales of noodles, frozen
foods and other products in Hong Kong and overseas, and
provision of research and publicity services

. PRC Operations: Manufacturing and sales of noodles,
frozen foods and other products in the PRC, and provision

of publicity services

There are no aggregation of individual operating segments to
derive the reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION /zantinued)

Segment revenue and results

Segment information about these operating and reportable

6. HERER =
DEBMA R EE

BHZELERARENHZOHBERZS

segments is presented below: T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2021F12531HILFE
Reportable
HK PRC segments
Operations  Operations total  Elimination Total
ARG
BBEK RS ABEF e Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THERT THERT TERT
Revenue A
Segment revenue from external  REINFEF 2 HEBUA
customers 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335 - 3,866,335
Inter-segment revenue RESEION 196,911 191,146 388,057 (388,057) -
Segment revenue SEBA 1,663,066 2,591,326 4,254,392 (388,057) 3,866,335
Result £
Segment results DEEE 123,493 299,058 422,551 - 422,551
Unallocated income AAEUA 16,595
Unallocated other gains and losses R DB E At Iz RS 1B 3,453
Interest income FIEHA 16,751
Fair value changes on finandial BATEHF A EENSRERE
assets at FVTPL NFEEE (618)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREELEE
plant and equipment (17,156)
Consolidated profit before taxation 47 A% ATHH 441,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (cantinses) 6. HERER =
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBAREE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BlZ2020F 12531 H L FE
Reportable
HK PRC segments
Operations Operations total Elimination Total
BES
BBEL HEIET Badt baf CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT TAT FAT FHT
Revenue /0N
Segment revenue from external ~ REINERFE ZHHUA
customers 1,418,407 2,100,440 3,518,847 - 3,518,847
Inter-segment revenue A EWA 205,252 180,030 385,282 (385,282) -
Segment revenue AEHBA 1,623,659 2280470 3,904,129 (385,282) 3,518,847
Result ES
Segment results DEEE 165,490 247,122 412,612 - 412,612
Unallocated income RAEBA 53,039
Unallocated other gains and losses  &AE RS R EHEE (15,801)
Interest income FEUA 24,615
Donation charged to profitor loss ~ AE& K Z B (40,000)
Fair value changes on finandial RATEF N ERNSRERE
assets at FVTPL ATHEEH @1
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BEREEEE
plant and equipment (112)
Consolidated profit before taxation 44 B Al 433,942

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, net exchange gain
or loss, donation charged to profit or loss, interest income, fair
value changes on financial assets at FVTPL, and loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment. This is measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION /zantinued)

Segment assets and liabilities

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the information
is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment
results are presented.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

DEER &
SBEERAE
AR EFSE R MR EREELS
ARRETHEFRBEBER - AT EZS 5D
MBEEKERE - Atk - E25]0 WA KD

Hitb 7 & &R
FHENREE ANDHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F 12831 HILFE
HK PRC
Operations Operations Total
BBEL B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FTHExT
Amortisation of intangible assets I EERE 3,231 3,544 6,775
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% * BEMEEITE
equipment 14,886 13,557 28,443
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FREEEITE 5,451 9,904 15,355
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F 12531 HIFFE
HK PRC
Operations Operations Total
BB e #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHTT
Amortisation of intangible assets B E R 3,231 2,483 5,714
Depreciation of property, plantand 4% - BE M RETE
equipment 12,214 10,435 22,649
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FAEEENE 1,258 6,942 8,200

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | —ZE=—F &R ]55



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantinued) 6.

Geographical information

DEER &

@R
KEFREGIMNIBEFZWAZTEREMNE
B (FTiEsh) ~ PR EMRE 2 EPIWA -
TRIBERFE Z FTEMETF - AEBZIERE
BEMREEBNPRE @ NHIREZEEE M
BB EEEREEZEEEZ BN

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived
from customers located in Hong Kong (location of domicile),
the PRC and others, which is determined based on the location
of customers, while the Group’s non-current assets are located
in Hong Kong and the PRC, which is determined based on the

geographical location of these assets or place of group entities HRA)ETE
that hold such assets, where appropriate.
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
External revenue: A ONE
Hong Kong BB 1,357,985 1,214,766
The PRC A 2,400,180 2,100,440
Others (Canada, Australia, United States of — Efhith& (In&E A ~ M - EE -
America, Taiwan, Macau, etc.) BERME) 108,170 203,641
3,866,335 3,518,847
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets (Note): EmBEE (Fsh) -
Hong Kong B 654,100 606,540
The PRC A 1,308,361 1,210,716
1,962,461 1,817,256

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL, deferred tax

assets, loan receivable, time deposits with maturity over one year

and rental deposits.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION /zantinued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the respective year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, individually contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

6. HERER @
BRTERF &R

THREATE ZWAREZE2021F %2020
F12A318 L& FEEME AL B LU A

BB 10% :

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A' EEA 817,406 830,796
Customer B? =PB? 684,025 589,047
Customer C2 BERPC 435,991 475,403
! From the PRC operations ! REPEEBEE
2 From both HK and the PRC operations 2 REBEBRPBIEGEE
OTHER INCOME 1. HislgA
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Government grant related to acquisition BRANE S E 2 BT AL
of assets (note 31) (FF&E31) 948 954
Government grant related to expenses BT RS 2 BUT AL
recognised (Note) (K3E) 9,175 47,804
Interest income from bank deposits RITF KA BURA 14,835 19,988
Interest income from financial assets at BRATHES ARG
fair value through profit or loss SREENFSMA 1,916 4,627
Miscellaneous income IR 3,182 3,352
Other scrap materials sales HAbBEEMRIEE 3,655 1,863
33,71 78,588
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised MIEE : i E 2021128310 ILEE - AEEH
government grants of HK$9,175,000 in relating to tax subsidies B B TR B B L R T @ B A
provided by the PRC government. During the year ended 31 9,175,000/ 7T ° #£2020F12 A31H 1k
December 2020, the Group recognised government grants FERN > KREBEFEFCovid-1948 8 4
of HK$43,685,000 in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies in AL R T # Bh43,685,00008 7T » BIE A
Hong Kong under Employment Support Scheme provided by the BT REM R 52150 - Flgrmk
Hong Kong government. The remaining government grants of T BN4,119,0007% T35 5 B B2 (A9 B
HK$4,119,000 represents other subsidies provided by the PRC b FERE ©
government.
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | =& = —4 4§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HitnzEREHE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Exchange gain (loss), net HE 5 W am (B518) JF 58 3,453 (15,801)
Fair value changes on financial BRATES ARG eRMERE
assets at FVTPL NEEE) (618) 411)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREEZ
plant and equipment K518 (17,156) (112)
(14,321) (16,324)
9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. BAWR A
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 365 116
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREHiRAXZ
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Current tax: BVEARRIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFISH 28,542 24,986
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BTSSR 84,177 79,869
PRC Withholding tax HEITEHORR 2,430 2,110
115,149 106,965
(Over)underprovision in prior years: AR E GRREERME) BHE T 2
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENSH (1.334) (278)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl S FTIS R 5,561 1,426
4,227 1,148
119,376 108,113
Deferred tax (note 22) BRIERIE (5E22) (17,035) (6,735)
102,341 101,378

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The EIT Law requires withholding tax to be levied on distribution
of profits earned by the PRC entities for profits generated after 1
January 2008 at rate of 5% for Hong Kong resident companies,
which are the beneficial owners of the dividend received.

M2018F3 2180 « BB EALBE2017
FRIEUER]) (B75) GHER ([EHE
] HS|AMBRBIFEHESE o KHIE
ZN2018F3 A28 AR EM AAETHRER
FIEER - BERBHIFEREGE - 44
BEBEBROE2HEE B TEREZS8.25%
HIRRER - MiBE2E BB TrERE R
16.5% KT LT o TEFEMRH TS =
FIEERZEBEE AT EERME
16.5% B ANTIIE ©

BETPEMERSHEE ([DEMRSHED R
TEMBBURERIED - PREWE R ME
FEZMESEF25% ©

TEMERIAEE  FRERBASEERE
¥(BERBREEREAA) REMBRILZ N
2008F 1 A1 HRELE Z & MIER & D IR
B+ ZBIR5 % T RN TEINFL ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

10.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (antineq) 0. EifEFHiMA=Z @)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the FAMEHRAS SR BE R EMEERA
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or KR ZBRBAIRFHERAT

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation R A% A& A 441,576 433,942
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% ¥ZAMATSFFIER16.5% 18 2 Fi18 72,860 71,600
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAHB S 2 R &
for tax purpose 3,761 15,430
Tax effect of income not taxable BAERBWA 2 G2
for tax purpose (2,265) (13,870)
Utilisation of tax losses previously ALK B iR BIBEE
not recognised - (4,128)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERBBE B TS E 3,951 -
Utilisation of deductible temporary B) A SEATR SR 2 ATHIR
differences previously not recognised TR ERE (16,952) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R REE 2 HE QB TR X
operating in the PRC -7 19,105 27,654
Underprovision in prior years NEFERETR 4,227 1,148
Withholding tax attributable to A T /B8 A B R4S 9 B e A FEAG
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries ~ JB¥1Fi 16,147 2,767
Income tax at concessionary rate HEBEMRETENER (165) (165)
Others Efth 1,672 942
Income tax expense for the year FAMEHRY 102,341 101,378

160 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF



1.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . FEWi@F
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at FERm AR
after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 6,775 5,714
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE S 4,519 5,921
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR B S 2 FEHA 2,640,295 2,360,170
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment#7% - BiE LR EITE 160,093 144,447
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : BiiF S B FRE AR 2 FE
included in cost of sales upon sales (HEFIASHERAN) (131,650) (121,798)
28,443 22,649
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 15,355 8,200
Total depreciation YR 43,798 30,849
Donation charged to profit or loss (Note iii) 5T A8z HY I8 7k (i) - 40,000
Expenses relating to short-terms lease EREBHEE R 7,204 2,239
Research and development expenditure HEHEZ 35,167 29,300
Staff costs (Note i) 8 TRk A (B 3ED
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EE=0e (H:E12)
— fees —1E 1,000 850
— other emoluments —EMEe 17,499 16,154
— equity-settled share-based payment — AR R AE B DARR 1) i B
(NEN 1,431 2,009
19,930 19,013
Other staff costs excluding directors’ TERESHE 2 Hi 8 T A
emoluments (Notes i and ii) (B #Ei Kzii) 696,044 584,395
Equity-settled share-based payment PARE R A E AR (D A AR R - 745
Total staff costs BB TR 715,974 604,153
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : BLIF BT E A 2 FE
included in cost of sales upon sales (B ERHAHEKAK) (321,937) (282,059)
Less: Amount included as research and B FIA X PR RS 2 FRIB
development expenditure as shown above (19,620) (17,539)
374,417 304,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (cantinues)

Notes:

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme included in other

staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$36,531,000 (2020: HK$33,597,000).

ii. In addition to the employee benefits expense presented above, the
Group also provides other non-monetary benefits (such as staff
quarters and motor vehicles to employees). During the year ended
31 December 2020, depreciation of right-of-use assets amounted
to HK$513,000 is related to these non-monetary benefits (2021:

nil).

iii. Donation made to a charitable fund amounted to HK$40,000,000
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

12.  DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

1.

FWiEA @)

BisE:

HE2021F12A831HIEFE  JIAH
ftb B TR AR B IR RIE FIGH B R A
36,531,000 7T (20204F : 33,597,000/%
JT) °

B BRAFAIZIN  REBITRMH
Hi3rE®B RS (REEIEERAET
ET) - ZE2020F 12 A3HLL 1 BREE
IR0 B E YT & /513,000%8 7T
(20215 4E) »

HE2020F 12 A31AILFE - RESEIE
Ve #9485 540,000,000/ 7T °

2. EERERVITEME

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Directors’ fees (Note i) =Tl i) 1,000 850
Other emoluments: (Note ii) EAb NS - (BT

Basic salaries and allowances HEAH & NEBL 17,499 16,154

Discretionary bonus BOIETEAL - -

Equity-settled share-based payment AR R A5 B LARR 19 R BT AR 1,431 2,009

19,930 19,013

Notes:

The directors’ fees were mainly for their services as directors of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

ii. The other emoluments were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.
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12,

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Zantinued)

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief

2. EERERAITEME @
BN FARAREEREFERTE 2B

executive of the Company are set out below: SHEIIT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A831AILEE
Other emoluments
HpEhe
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors' salaries and Discretionary scheme share-hased
fees  allowances bonus  contributions payment Total
NEHEE
558 EHEA NRGA
£k REH BBRA TR EBRHAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A B1ES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZHERLE () - 6,003 - - 1,050 7,053
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BafarE - 3,439 - - 138 3,577
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RARERESE - 2,737 - - 90 2,827
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JIRAAE - 2,672 - - 90 2,762
Mr. Munehiko Ono NERERE
(resigned on 1 July 2021) (202157 188 - 862 - - 50 912
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada IWEAR S A
(appointed on 1 July 2021) (M202157R1HEZ) - 1,786 - - 13 1,799
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) Bi3EH{TES
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAfXET 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Junichi Honda ’HE-ikE
(resigned on 1 July 2021) (202157 A188D) 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Masaru Takahashi REBLE
(appointed on 1 July 2021) (M202157R1BEZ) 125 - - - - 125
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano PHETHR 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai PHFEEE 250 - - - - 250
1,000 17,499 - - 1431 19,930
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Ffes ek 2R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

12,

13.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (zantinues) 12 EERERFVITEME @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B £2020F12A318LEE
Other emoluments
EfbMe
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors'  salariesand  Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees  allowances bonus  contributions payment Total
IEREE
EXe il IR A
EESkn R2H B R AREH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A B1ES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZHEELE () - 5,585 - - 1,421 7,006
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BafaLE - 327 - - 198 3,469
Mr. Shinj Tatsutani RAEREE - 2,301 - - 130 2,431
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JIRAAE %4 - 2,482 - - 130 2612
Mr. Munehiko Ono NERERE - 2,515 - - 130 2,645
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) Bi3EH{TES
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IREKREL 225 - - - - 205
Mr. Junichi Honda REE-%E 225 - - - - 205
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano ESEIE b4 225 - - - - 225
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai b
(appointed on 1 April 2020) (1202054 A1 AEZA) 175 - - - - 175
850 16,154 - - 2,009 19,013
Note: Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the Executive Director, Chairman of the Board Mie : THBRLEAAEEBRITES - EF K
and Chief Executive of the Group. REFHTE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FR - BEABESYNEFERNTENELR
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the EREEAME 2L -
year.
= =
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 3. hAEEeHES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included five directors (2020: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.
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15,

DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2020 Final-14.05 HK cents (2020: 2019
final dividend 11.7 HK cents) per share
—11.784L)

FARRD RS

14 2

2020F R EA — &A% 14.0581
(2020%F : 2019 REARL 2

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT Tt
150,142 125,695

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
and a special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021 of 14.56 HK cents and a special dividend of 2.91 HK cents
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$182,333,000,
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and both
are subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15,

RIBEERE - ARFEFTERENEE
2021412 A31H L FEREBAR B KRR %
BEREBK14.568 0 X &M2. 91781l -
£3£182,333,000/ 7T + MBI A IE
[ERRAFRGHEELFIEE -

BRER

ARRHEA NEEBRERREERATHE
RATEIEHE

2021 2020
20215 2020
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: B2REUSTEMT :
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ FLEREAREERF M EAAR]
the Company for the purpose of basicand ~ #HB AFE(G G AEF| (F#7T)
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) 303,821 301,912
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FtERREAZBFIME 2 L@k
for the purpose of basic earnings per share  JN#EF5 £k 1,057,034,523 1,074,085,719
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in  BhoRTTE R BB = 2
respect of outstanding share awards BEEE s LRk o8 34,215 210,031
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Fi&R% & H 2 Fin = 2 L@
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 9% 1,057,068,738 | 1,074,295,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % > BB RHE

Machinery
Owned Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction
properties improvements equipment  and fixtures vehiles  in progress Total
RENE HENERE  BERRE  BAREE g ERIR 5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TeR  TER TAR TER TAR ThR TR
cost KA
At 1 January 2020 202051718 1,127,447 40,905 865,720 119,719 17,456 60,960 2,232,207
Additions hE 1,274 188 31977 9,801 1,702 180,490 21,432
Disposals e - - (5,739) (679) (1,803) - (8,221)
Redlassification B 115,310 3,265 16,509 1,609 - (136,693) -
Eichange realignment [ 43,244 156 36,686 5,188 516 601 86,391
At 31 December 2020 #200%12831H 1,297,275 44514 951,153 135,638 17871 105,358 2,551,809
Additions E 7453 15,819 71431 10,808 4,641 146,216 262,368
Acquired on acquisition HUREE TR B Al B R (B
of a subsidiary (note 36a) H36a) 2598 - - - - - 2,598
Disposals e (4,203) (188) (61372) (2,725) (1,469) - (69,957)
Redassification Efipid 151,274 3,25 29429 871 - (184,830) -
Exchange realignment i3k 18,010 % 18310 2,567 m 1,200 40,456
At 31 December 2021 #2001%12831H 1,472,407 63,497 1,014,951 147,159 21316 67,944 2,181,274
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT HERAE
At 1 January 2020 202051418 289,614 18,007 473,009 72,136 13,770 - 866,536
Provided for the year FERE 4,944 4915 82,035 12,799 1,754 - 144,447
Eiminated upon disposals it ER - - (4,969) (985) (1,723) - (7,677)
Exchange realignment B % 7888 7 19,404 499 304 - 32,655
At 31 December 2020 #2000%12831H 340,446 22,949 569,479 88,942 14,145 - 1,035,961
Provided for the year FRARE 48,307 8,267 87,955 13456 2,108 - 160,093
Eliminated upon disposals it ERF i (3,726) 42) (43,365) (2,496) (1,469) - (51,098)
Exchange realignment ERRE 384 30 15,378 97 190 - 16,949
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 385,411 31,204 629,447 100,869 14,974 - 1,161,905
CARRYING VALUES FEfE
At 31 December 2021 #2001%128318 1,086,9% 32,093 385,504 46,290 6,342 67,944 1,625,369
At 31 December 2020 #2000%12831H 956,829 21,565 381,674 46,6% 3,726 105,358 1,515,848
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16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (zantinued) 16.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress after taking into account of their

M~ BB RRE

MRAERZ T2 -

i - BB LREEE

EET ARG RIBBERNAEREEZAT

estimated residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis FRIERE -
at the following rates per annum:
Owned properties 3%-5% B 3% £ 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the terms HEMHEEE HIEEFHIK 20%
of the leases or 20% (&5 & B2E)
Machinery and equipment 9%-30% 3 NN 9% = 30%
Furniture and fixtures 14%-20% RRREE 14% % 20%
Motor vehicles 18%-30% E 18% % 30%
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FREEE
Leasehold Leased Motor
lands properties vehicles Total
FAELH HEWE E “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2021  R2021F12H431H
Carrying amounts BREE 196,009 11,501 - 207,510
As at 31 December 2020  2020%12H31H
Carrying amounts BREE 148,303 16,962 - 165,265
For the year ended 31 B£2021F12A318
December 2021 LtEE
Depreciation charge TEEH (5,195) (10,160) - (15,355)
Exchange realignment [E R AR 4,089 15 4,104
For the year ended 31 B £2020F12A31H
December 2020 LEE
Depreciation charge nEEH (4,084) (4,058) (58) (8,200)
Exchange realignment M SRR 8,560 956 - 9,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cantinuec)

17. EFRAEEE®

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Expense relating to short-term leases BHREBHEENHAS 7,204 2,239
Total cash outflow for leases BHERSTE 15,916 5,800
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FREEENE Hi) 53,496 18,328

Note: Included in additions to right-of-use assets amounted of
HK$48,812,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021
were the acquisition of a land-use-right in Hong Kong through
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36).

For both years, the Group leases office premises, staff quarters
and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one to three years (2020: one to three
years), but may have extension and termination options. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.
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17.

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (zantinuec)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK11,212,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$11,501,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: lease liabilities of HK$16,674,000 and related right-
of-use assets of HK$16,962,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

11.

EHEEE®)

AEBTESRRETIES MAET L REA
4 o PA2021F 20204612 A318 » AT
EHAHE A EENEBAEERAE8E
Lo

5 Y PR I A 22 5

AN - R2021F 128318 - ERRHE
EA81E11,212,0008 L R LR F B iE
&E11,501,000487C(2020F : FHESA
£16,674,0008 T N HABEFERAEEE
16,962,000/ 7T) - HEHEBREHEARZEE
FFE & & B P R IR o SN T B D0 A AT 22
o MEEETSAEEEER -

GOODWILL 18. W&
Eastpeak
MC Marketing Trading
Guangdong & Sales (Shanghai)
Shunde Nissin (Hong Kong) Company
Foods Co., Ltd Limited Limited Total
ERIEERE BREZE LEREES
RmAERAH BRAT BRAF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TERT
AT COST AND CARRYING VALUES AR K ERE(E
At 1 January 2020 #2020 1818 8414 31,668 - 40,082
Arising from acquisition of R TR A (M5E36)
business (note 36) - - 22,515 22,515
Exchange realignment R AR - - 1,923 1,923
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12A31H 8,414 31,668 24,438 64,520
Exchange realignment B i AR - - 719 719
At 31 December 2021 M2021512A31H 8,414 31,668 25,157 65,239
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | =T = —44%{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE

18.

GOODWILL (zantinued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised as below:

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. The Group performed impairment
review for the goodwill of Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd based on the cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budgets and estimated future cash flows for the
following five years as approved by the management and using
a pre-tax discount rate of 7.7% (2020: 7.7%) per annum. The
cash flows beyond five-year are extrapolated using a 1.0% (2020:
1.0%) per annum growth rate. Key assumptions for the value in
use calculation, are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices and cost during
forecasted periods. Management estimates discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed its aggregate
recoverable amount.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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18.

GOODWILL (zantinued)
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2021,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
15.0% (2020: 15.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2020: 2.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
and key parameters for the value in use calculation include
budgeted sales and expected changes to selling prices and cost,
which are determined based on management’s expectations
for the market development and market growth forecasts.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of this unit.

Eastpeak Trading (Shanghai) Company Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2021,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
11.0% (2020: 11.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2020: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
and key parameters for the value in use calculation include
budgeted sales and gross margin and expected changes to selling
prices and cost, which are determined based on management’s
expectations for the market development and market growth
forecasts. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

18.

GG,

BEREZARAT
ZHESEEBN 2 AR E S ENMEAE
ETEMET - R2021%F12831H %R
SEEBMZAIRESEIE R EEEE
B2 HEMBTE - ZEEDERKEAFZ
O BBEEELE 2R RERAREF
15.0% (20204F : 15.0%) Z T ATHTIR X ()2
BT B RIS B EEE 2 HE REE
SEEBNZFERR) MEL - BBRF
ZEEREAETEZ2.0% (20204 : 2.0%)
FIREREE o IIEREWARBBEMITE
R ER - FRABEHECHME
DHRERETELHUIEEEHEEULEE
BRAAZTEEEE) - DIREEREL TS
BREMMSERTEN 2 AMEE - BEE
RE  ZEBRRZAMAEEEESHIE
EZESEL BN FEAEBRIRE
ADEE

EFEREESZHRAT
ZReELEMZAIRESREENERE
BExtEmMET - R20219F128318 » %8
SESBEMNZARBSRE ST REREE
B2 EEMETE  ZEEDERRRAFZ
RAVKBEELEZRSREBARESF
11.0% (20205 : 11.0%) Z B ATITER K (I
BT B AT IS H S REE 2T RZR
CEABNZETERR) MIEL - BRAF
ZIHRERFEAETE Z23.0% (20204 : 3.0%)
FIREREY - WIEREWRBBEHITE
ZEEREER - FREENEHME
BRERTBLYBEEEHEERTERR
AREEBRAAZBEES @ HIREEE
BEMBERAMBIERTEN 2 EHmME
F o BRERA  ZEBEZMAEETRE
BTG ENZRSELEN 2 REAE
BRI O RS EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

19.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. BREEE

Customer
Trademarks relationship Total
5= EFBF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
CosT (DN
At 1 January 2020 #2020F1 818 73,419 - 73,419
Acquisition of business (note 36) W ig 275 (P13E36) 4,261 22,488 26,749
Exchange realignment b AR 364 1,917 2,281
31 December 2020 72020128316 78,044 24,405 102,449
Exchange realignment bE AR 136 718 854
At 31 December 2021 M2021412A31H 78,180 25,123 103,303
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #84 K2 B (&
At 1 January 2020 #2020F1A1H 48,379 - 48,379
Amortisation for the year FNEH 3,560 2,154 5,714
Exchange realignment bE A% 18 119 137
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31H 51,957 2,273 54,230
Amortisation for the year FREEH 3,700 3,075 6,775
Exchange realignment bE A% 17 111 128
At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H 55,674 5,459 61,133
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H 22,506 19,664 42,170
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 26,087 22,132 48,219

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

following periods:

Trademarks 10-15 years
Customer relationship 13 years
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20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 0. REEANRZER
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cost of investment in an unlisted company  RIE LT AT ZEERA 120 120
Exchange realignment HE N 4) 4)
116 116

Particulars of the associate of the Group are as follows:

REERERRFBENT :

Proportion of ownership

2020  Principal activities

25%  Designing, producing an

interest held by the Group
AEBFFERRELA
Name of associate Place of incorporation 2021
HENRER SR B 2021% 20205  EEXK
EREREEBR AT PRC 25%
o

The followings are the summarised financial information of the
associate:

publishing advertisements

Ret - REREMES

AT REERRMBERE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

The Group's share of result of the associate ~ ANEBDEHE & A B E4E - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ AREEREE A RER 2

interest in an associate IREERTE 116 116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 21.

}

4

Rk

AFEFNEZHEME

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Financial assets designated at FVTPL: EBERAFEFABREN
SWMEE
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong (Note i) &7&_E AR #ERE (550 12,436 14,241
Unlisted equity investments (Note ii) FE_E kiR & (B EEiD) 19,502 18,315
Club debenture (Note iii) 2FES (M) 5,272 272
37,210 32,828
Financial asset mandatorily BEIRAFEFABRTE
measured at FVTPL: WERERE :
Structured notes (Note iv) IR B EEiv) 198,985 197,069
236,195 229,897
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHAEMELE 2T :
Current assets MENEE 198,985 197,069
Non-current assets ERBEE 37,210 32,828
236,195 229,897

Notes:

The above listed equity investment represents ordinary shares of an
entity listed in Hong Kong. This investment is not held for trading,
instead, it is held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of
the Company have elected to designate this investment at FVTPL.

The unlisted equity investments include an amount of
HK$3,544,000 (2020: HK$3,240,000) which represents investment
in 5% unlisted equity issued by a private entity established in
the PRC. This investee is principally engaged in the testing and
inspection of the safety and quality of food products manufacturing
and sales of instant food. The remaining HK$15,958,000 (2020:
HK$15,075,000) represents investment in 26.68% unlisted equity
issued by a private entity in India, which is engaged in processing
and export of frozen-dried seafood, spices and herbs.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments as FVTPL.
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21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

Club debenture is stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to market price.

The structured notes of US$25,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$198,985,000) (2020: US$25,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$197,069,000) are issued by
a financial institution in Hong Kong. The structured notes are
interest-rate linked instruments with enhanced interest rates which
accrue on a daily basis and will be automatically extended every
month by an additional month unless the Group exercises the right
to redeem the instruments on maturity date. Thus, it is not held
solely for payment for principal and interest and therefore, it is
measured at FVTPL.

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at FVTPL
are set out in note 38(c).

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

21.

22,

BATEFNEZNEME
E®
Wit © ()

EMESEATEIR  AFENSE
M{EEE

25,000,000 7T (1H & 72 47198,985,0007#
JL) (2020%F : 25,000,0003 7t (FHE A4
197,069,000 7T) MBI RIEHR — M5
OB ET c ZEBCREAFEH
HITE  EFRZRATEIRS @ BRIELSE
EREERTEER T ANER - TEG
BREBHERIEAR - At - EWEEAR
REMAAERFEMmEE - Bit - EUA
FEEF AR

BATVESABENSBEEOATE 2
GlE NG R
IEEHiIR

REIGAPBHREK  BETRERBEE
MABEDYIRE - AT R B2 E 6l

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax YRR BT AT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIIRE B (62,511) (33,523)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIESE 56,270 46,311
(6,241) 12,788
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | =& = —F 4%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

22.  DEFERRED TAXATION (zontinves) 2. IEIERIE ()
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets T EENRENFEEEEREZRERE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BEREENEEE) :
years:
Undistributed
Accelerated earnings
tax of the PRC
depreciation Tax losses  subsidiaries Others Total
HREHEAR
MEHBRE BEEE  RKOEEM Hit @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET TR
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
GiE3)) (i) (FifE3)

At 1 January 2020 720201818 42,342 (6,470) 5,464 (20,082) 21,254
(Credited) charged to profitor loss ~ FMEZEH (G A) B (3.716) 6,470 657 (10,146) (6,735)
Exchange realignment [ A% 717 - 151 (2,599) (1,731)
At 31 December 2020 720206128318 39,343 - 6,272 (32,827) 12,788
(Credited) charged to profitor loss ~ FMEZH (GFA) 3B (3321) - 13,716 (27,430) (17,035)
Exchange realignment E3aEGE - - (617) (1,377) (1,994)
At 31 December 2021 20214124318 36,022 - 19,371 (61,634) (6,241)
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22.  DEFERRED TAXATION (zontinued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$23,948,000 available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset in respect of the tax losses of
approximately HK$23,948,000 has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The Group has no unused
tax losses as at 31 December 2020.

Included in unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December, 2021 were
losses of HK$19,102,000 that will expire as follows:

2026 20264

22.

IEEFIE 2

SRR

R2021F 128318  AEBEREAZHIE
E518497/523,948,000/8 7T » A] K $4 R 5k
A o WAE LT IEAS184723,948,000%8 T
HREERIBEE - b Jh B EETER R
FOEFR » $A2020F12A31H » A%H
KRB AR IEESIE -

R2021F 12 A31H 2 AR AR E A1
FALAT B BBfE % < 651819,102,0007 7T

2021
20214
HK$’000
FHET

2020
20204
HK$'000
FHBIT

19,102 -

The remaining unrecognised tax loss as at 31 December 2021 will
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$387,420,000 (2020: HK$125,440,000).

Amount mainly represents deductible temporary differences
arising from provision for retirement benefits, accrued salaries and
promotion expenses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$240,535,000 (2020:
HK$139,575,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$240,535,000 (2020: HK$132,339,000) of such deductible
temporary differences. No deferred tax assets in respect of the
remaining temporary differences of approximately HK$nil (2020:
HK$7,236,000) has been recognised due to unpredictability of
future profits stream.

2021612 A31H 2 88 FARERTLIAR 18
15 4R BR AL o

RERBEBEMSHE - 200841 A1
A - gt BB A B BRE 2 % F m
FIRZBREHESMBEINR - EFF
BB A B R 9 Bl i A B G B B ME = AR A
387,420,000 7T (2020%F : 125,440,000
PETT) MR A I R R PR HRIEE R IE -

ZERTBEERKEN - Bt RE
FHERFRSCEGMEE 2 TR E R IEE
CE

RBEHR  AEEBEEMITINAY
B 1 #%8240,535,000%8 7T (20204
139,575,000/ 70) A KI5 R AR T ©
25 RIFE4)240,535,0005% 7T (20204 -
132,339,000/ 7T) AT HIE B 14 2= SE i 7R
FERTEEE - WERFISEREERED
T 7T (20204F ¢ 7,236,00058 7T) HERIE
EFRIEEE + 1t Ty R ESATE AR ACE T
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

23.

24

25,

LOAN RECEIVABLE 3. BWER
The loan receivable is interest-free, repayable by quarterly ERERAREBER - AERTHFRN(B2014
instalments within ten years (from July 2014 with last payment by F7ARE - B2024F HBERIL)RED
2024) and the repayments are guaranteed by the shareholders of HAER - MBREF I BE T IRERER -
the borrower.
Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable are set out in FEWEFOR B E B M EE38() ©
note 38(b).
INVENTORIES U FE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Raw materials JRAT 149,058 125,330
Work in progress fE2m 64,010 43,617
Finished goods X 251,931 194,197
464,999 363,144
i kY 72
BOND RECEIVABLES 5. BWES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group purchased
government bonds with face value of RMB30,000,000
at a consideration of RMB30,645,000 (approximately to
HK$37,087,000) from a financial institution. Such bonds carry
coupon rate of 2.64% per annum. The effective interest rate of
such bonds is 2.53% per annum. The bonds will be matured on
13 August 2022.
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HZE2021F12A31HILEFE - KEBMUA
R #30,645,0007T (#737,087,000/8 7T) LB
memEEREEEEASARYK30,000,000
THBNES - ZSEHFMNEEFEXEAR
2.64% ° ZEBEHFMERFHNEHF2.53% °
BEHEKR202268 4138 21 -



26.

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS

26. B 5EWERRH it FEW X

B ARERERE

Trade receivables B 5 EWERR
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables-sales of goods Z S RN — HEM M 478,585 512,009
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (3,203) (3,464)
475,382 508,545

At 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$421,056,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates at
the end of the reporting period.

HK2020F1A1H - REHEFHNEHNES
FEUBR TR A421,056,000/8 7T ©

AT AR IREAARIZHE A H (RS URARE
RAHEE) 27 2 B HRUSEK FHREER
EREE) 2R DT -

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT T

0 to 30 days 0%F30k 314,566 311,404
31 to 90 days 31290k 143,369 170,519
91 to 180 days 91%E 180K 17,447 26,622
475,382 508,545

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$185,673,000 (2020: HK$88,448,000) which are past
due as at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past due
balances, HK$6,716,000 (2020: HK$1,346,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as the
customers have good repayment history during the year and over
the past years, and these customers have strong financial capacity
as they are the subsidiaries of large listed corporate in Hong
Kong.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out
in note 38(b).

MR2021F 128318 » "&EB 28 5B
REEH B IERM(EAT5185,673,000/8 7T
(20204 : 88,448,000/ T) Z FEURBRZN
ZHIERREBARD A - RN ESSRT
6,716,000/ 7T (20204F : 1,346,000/ L)
EEAI0KR LA - TR BEL - BA
BERAFERBATLFHEE RITENG
8 - ARREREP ABABARE LM ARIRM
BAR MZSEEPHEEEEVHES -

B 5 RWERR 2 BERT G BN
38(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an e AR EhaRhiEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILEFE

26.  TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 26, 5 55 FEUSBR X H fth FE UL FX

DEPOSITS (zantinued) B EAFERESE®
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HibEWFIE - AARERESE
The following is the analysis of other receivables, prepayments AN A s B H f FE YR SRR ~ TR 5RIE
and deposits at the end of the reporting period: Rig® 29
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Other receivables HoAth FEMGRIE 26,785 23,095
Prepayments TERTFIR 23,318 21,043
Prepaid value added tax and other taxes TEIGER R H AR 1A 21,152 33,363
Rental deposits HEZe 4,511 4,545
Utilities and other deposits KERHMES 13,573 13,138
89,339 95,184
Analysed as: DR
Current BNEA 87,288 92,877
Non-current JEBNER 2,051 2,307
89,339 95,184
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set out H 8 Y AR TR 2 BB AT A R 1B RS B
in note 38(b). 38(b) °
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21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
related companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on
the invoice date, which approximate the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

21.

FEU (FE1T) BRASHERR N Rl
[&) £ B} B 2~ B =K IR

AT RRIRERRIZEE B8 (RS WARE
REHAE) 27 ZBERRE 5 RUIRR
(REER - 2R RABF30E40KREEH)
ZERER T

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries: ERRAKMBARRE :
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
0 to 30 days 0£30K 24,274 15,009
31 to